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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Mazars CPA LIMITED

HHIE @t o o0 25 7 A LA
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

VS P O 1 8 5R T BR B M 408

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi
(Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 68 to 193,
which comprise the consolidated and the Company’s statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2011, the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 21 March 2012

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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0 Consolldated Income Statement

..00 ®° B It2011E12A31AEE
Year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
B ot FETT FETT
Note USs$°000 Us$'000
=2 Turnover 6 7,866,580 6,681,482
$HE B AR Cost of sales (5,778,611) (4,782,037)
£ 7 Gross profit 2,087,969 1,899,445
Emlzmk Other revenue and
H At F A other net income 8 169,905 183,373
Balki=] 7N Distribution costs (1,322,975) (1,121,477)
1T E R Administrative expenses (189,215) (125,953)
H A& & Other operating expenses (73,336) (92,081)
%5 A Finance costs 9 (9,372) (6,511)
FE(RE e N Al EE Share of results of associates — 9,978
R Bt A& R Profit before taxation 9 662,976 746,774
I8 Taxation 11 (163,272) (134,200)
7 F B A Profit for the year 499,704 612,574
FRELERR : Attributable to:
KA TRE Owners of the Company 419,545 476,787
LEEERE Non-controlling interests 80,159 135,787
7 B A 499,704 612,574
BRER Earnings per share 14
H AR Basic US7.51 cents US8.53 cents
5 Diluted US7.47 cents US8.50 cents

“68
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

o
B1E2011512A3181Lt5% "*ee0 0@
Year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
E3 FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
7 B A Profit for the year 499,704 612,574
Hi2mHWKE : Other comprehensive income:
bE N =2 Exchange differences on consolidation 131,746 77,369
AfEHEeREE Fair value changes in available-for-sale
NAEEZE financial assets (16,733) 11,109
REEGHEBER Reclassification adjustment for exchange
R E N =8 differences release upon disposal of
ZEDHEAE assets classified as held for sale (3,847) =
HEeAFEEEMEZE KRS Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 111,166 88,478
BeareEE2m k=85 Total comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 610,870 701,052
EiE2mEkss Attributable to:
RARIRE Owners of the Company 498,176 545,221
DEERRE Non-controlling interests 112,694 155,831
610,870 701,052

2011 Annual Report fE48 69 ‘
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0 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

.0000 ® “ 20114128318
At 31 December 2011

2011 2010
B &t EY FZET
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
W HBRR Property, plant and equipment 15 4,029,872 2,922,936
=+ A8 4905 (8 Prepaid lease payments 17 186,276 117,799
AHEECHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 18 104,422 112,659
REBIRE E Deferred tax assets 30 52,176 50,451
4,372,746 3,203,845
REBEE Current assets
EAnEEINEREREERE Financial assets at fair value
BENEREE through profit or loss 19 560 771
T8 Inventories 20 312,562 309,801
& L BR 3R Trade receivables 21 155,040 127,730
T8 A~ 5K I K E e U R IR Prepayments and other receivables 22 367,814 280,704
EHRITEK Pledged bank deposits 24 9,662 12,024
RITEHRERS Bank balances and cash 24 590,390 881,316
1,436,028 1,612,346
STHEABELEEE Assets classified as held for sale — 75,221
BEE Total assets 5,808,774 4,891,412
BRREZRAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B A Capital and reserves
BITHRAR Issued capital 25 27,951 27,934
f& 8 Reserves 2,071,794 1,793,324
7R A 7 IR 5RPE 4l R 2R Total capital and reserves
attributable to owners
of the Company 2,099,745 1,821,258
LPERRER Non-controlling interests 586,521 547,929
IRRER AL Total equity 2,686,266 2,369,187

AedizpanRad

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

M20116F12A31H
At 31 December 2011

2011 2010
B &t EY FZET
Note Us$’000 Us$’000
ERBEMB Non-current liabilities
REBEEEE Long-term interest-bearing
borrowings 28 549,382 177,259
H i FE % B E 1 RIE Other non-current payables — 791
BTRHNEMFE Employee benefit obligations 29 14,064 12,097
REHAEEE Deferred tax liabilities 30 131,092 104,165
694,538 294,312
REBAE Current liabilities
J& 1< BR 3K Trade payables 31 974,113 1,083,913
E th JE 5K I8 Other payables 32 660,995 572,249
EEEE Current portion of
2 BVER & 10 interest-bearing borrowings 28 700,695 456,876
BEFEEMNRIE Advance payments from customers 66,501 86,940
I8 Taxation 25,666 25,315
2,427,970 2,225,293
PEARBELHEEEZ Liabilities associated with assets
HREE classified as held for sale — 2,620
BmEE Total liabilities 3,122,508 2,522,225
BRREmRkAR Total equity and liabilities 5,808,774 4,891,412
ARBRME Net current liabilities (991,942) (612,947)
REERRBAR Total assets less current liabilities 3,380,804 2,666,119

R20128F 321 BEES S ENBRESR

*%

FLFE N Wei Ing-Chou
& % Director

March 2012

# H % Takeshi Ida
% & Director

2011 Annual Report F#§
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L P Statement of Financial Position
®000e nongizasn
At 31 December 2011

2011 2010
k=3 ETT FETT
Note USs$’000 Us$’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
M - B RF Property, plant and equipment 15 99 120
AP NGIE: Fa Interest in subsidiaries 16 504,494 452,865
AEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 18 66,389 76,735
570,982 529,720
REBEE Current assets
BEARBEINKRRERZR Financial assets at fair value
BEENEREE through profit or loss 19 560 771
TEAS FRIE & B fth fE W SR IE Prepayments and other receivables 22 992 1,155
A ENGIE Amounts due from a subsidiary 23 160,000 25,000
RITHEHBERS Bank balances and cash 6,396 60,196
167,948 87,122
PEABELEEE Assets classified as held for sale — 19,482
BEE Total assets 738,930 636,324
BREZRER EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
IR A R & Capital and reserves
BT A Issued capital 25 27,951 27,934
% Reserves 26 277,413 350,628
RRERBRE Total equity 305,364 378,562
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RHPEEEE Long-term interest-bearing
borrowings 28 205,000 65,000
SETRMNEMFE Employee benefit obligations 29 8,425 7,814
213,425 72,814

i \ 72 Autzranad
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Statement of Financial Position
#2011 12H318 ~ °® 0000.
At 31 December 2011

2011 2010
k=3 ES FETT
Note USs$°000 Us$’000

REBEE Current liabilities
JE 15 BR 5K Trade payables 31 2,154 2,126
H th JE - 3R IB Other payables 32 12,987 25,822

EERBE Current portion

2 BVER & 10 of interest-bearing borrowings 28 205,000 157,000
220,141 184,948
wmeE Total liabilities 433,566 257,762
BRRERREE Total equity and liabilities 738,930 636,324
FREBAS Net current liabilities (52,193) (97,826)
BEERARBERE Total assets less current liabilities 518,789 451,376

M20124E3 A2 1 B REEe I RISRES Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21

2% March 2012
L FE M Wei Ing-Chou # H 2 Takeshi Ida
& F Director & F Director
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'0. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
®0oecc mions2A3IRLERE
Year ended 31 December 2011

ARARRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
ki s BRERR K& RAR  HERE
EORE G Share-  EfERE i B Rz
EARE Copitd RIAEE  Echange —REE  based Ivestment  REEF Total Non- fE%EE
Issued  redemption Share tranlation ~ General  payment revaluation  Retained capital and  controlling Total
capital ~ reserve  premium  reserve reseve  reseve  reserve  profits  reseves interests equity
i TAr A TEr fEn fEn fEr TEr TEr FEn fEx
USS'000  USS'000  USS'000 - US$'000 - USS'000 - USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  US§'000  US$‘000
R201051818 At 1 January 2010 271934 45 330492 163968 228,709 3,030 — 708466 1462644 446420 1,909,064
REERT Profitfor the year - - - - - - — 46787 416787 135787 612574
A 2EUE Other comprehensive
income
EiZE Exchange differences
on consolidation - - — 57325 - - - — 5135 20044 77369
TEHELREE Fair value change in
N WA available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - - — 11,109 — 11,109 — 11,109
1) Total other
2ENREE comprehensive income  — = - 513 = - 11109 — 68434 20044 88478
KEE Total comprehensive
2EkEEE income for the year - - — 5735 - — 11,109 476,787 545221 155831 701,05
BEAARE Transactions with owners
PEY of the Company:
BREEROTH Equity settled share-
23E based transactions - - - - - 5,020 - - 5,020 - 5,020
B20095 K HR S 2009 final dividend paid — - (39212) — — — —  (152415) (191,627) (54,322) (245949)
ERL-RHE Transfer to
general reserve - - - — 36,980 - —  (36,980) - - -
ARARRE Total transactions
LRARE with owners of
the Company - - (39212) — 36980 5,020 — (189395) (186,607) (54322) (240,929)
R2010£ 128318 At 31December 2010 27,934 45291280 221,293 265,689 8,050 11,109 995858 1,821,258 547,929 2,369,187
i \74 AetimEEReE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



GAREERBDE .

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity °®
BIE2011F12831A1LEE 2000 ®®
Year ended 31 December 2011
ARARRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
& HBEE BRERR R% kAR HHRR
RERRE e Share-  EfiEEE i s RRER
BORA  Capitl  RABEE Exchange -—BREE  based Investment REEH Total Non- ]
Issued redemption Share translation ~ General  payment revaluation Retained capital and controlling Total
capital  reserve premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  reserves interests  equity
E £t TEr  fin  fEm FErn TEn TEr TER TER 1
USS'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  US$'000  USS'000  USS'000
R20ME1A1R At 1 January 2011 27,934 45 291,280 221,293 265,689 8,050 11,109 995858 1,821,258 547,929 2,369,187
REEEH Profit for the year - - - - - - — 49545 419545 80,150 499,704
E2Eds Other comprehensive
income
EXZE Exchange differences
on- consolidation - - - um - - - - 93 umm 131,746
EHEEREE Fair value changes in
DrEzED avaiable-forsale
financial assets - - - - - - (16,733) - (16,733) - (16,733)
REEGHELER Redlassification
ERERZESL adjustment for
EREELS exchange
differences
release upon
disposal of
assets classified
as held for sale - - - (1,958) - - - - (1958)  (1.889)  (3.847)
At Total other
PENEEE comprehensive
income - - — 95364 - - (16,733) - 18631 32,535 111,166
REE Total comprehensive
PANRAE income for the year - - — 95364 - —  (16733) 419545 498176 112,694 610,870
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%o, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
C0oeec Eio0EI2AALEE
Year ended 31 December 2011

ARARRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
Rt AeEE RRERS RE Rk SHRR
RERE B Share:  EfEERE i B: RRER

RORE  Capitl  BARE Exchange -—REE  based Investment RERF Total Non- B
Issued redemption Share translation ~ General ~ payment revaluation ~Retained capital and controlling Total
capital  reserve premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  reserves interests  equity
Fin  fin  fin fEin fEn TEr TExr fEr TEn iR n

USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  US$'000

BRNARE Transactions
PEY with owners

of the Company
ERLERHTH Equity settled
b share-based

transactions - - - - - 13349 - - 13309 - 13309
REERESE Share issued under
Lgivd g share option scheme 17 - 15 - - (2003 - - 55 - 55
BR200FRHARE 2010 final

diidend paid - - (n64) - - - —  (45985) (238609) (62.916) (301525)
ERM-REE Transfer to

general reserve - - - — 65480 - - (65480) - - -
HE-FF2EHE Realisation on
W EAE (Shal disposal of
RARRBIELERE)  anonwholy
FEEZRY owned subsidiary

previously classified

3 asset held

for sale - - - - (3109) - - 3109 - (11186) (11,186
ERLNEARE Total transactions
LRARE with owners

of the Company 17 - (185,067) - m 11,346 — (108356) (219,689) (74,102) (293,791)
R2011E128318 At 31 December 2011 27,951 45 106213 316,657 328,060 19,396 (5,624) 1,307,047 2,099,745 586,521 2,686,266

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
H1E2011%F 128318 IEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
o3 Y FET
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
RETH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
LEERASIR € Cash generated from operations 33 739,353 1,396,225
B BTSN The People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") enterprise
income tax paid (135,858) (129,365)
B B Interest paid (12,871) (6,511)
RETBHMEEELEE Net cash from
operating activities 590,624 1,260,349
REFEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
B F & Interest received 38,564 21,479
2 AR Dividend income received 1,573 707
HERAREBEIIERR Proceeds from disposal of

TE=REERN financial assets at fair value

TRMEEZLAE through profit or loss 191 20,000
BARAABEIERER Purchase of financial assets

FEZEREENSREE at fair value through profit or loss (115) (20,000)
BATTHEESREE Purchase of available-for-sale

financial assets (8,496) —
HE—XRIFEZ2EMBRA R Proceeds from disposal of

— KB & A A) (LART 8 a non-wholly owned subsidiary

DEERELEERE) and an associate previously

= classified as held for sale 88,500 9,833
BAWE Purchase of property,

22 T 5% 1 plant and equipment (1,327,420) (965,633)
B L% E Prepaid lease payments (85,262) (32,267)
HEME IR Proceeds from sale of

Bk AR E property, plant and

Z 1S equipment and

prepaid lease payments 52,648 2,810
R ESEE FT A Net cash used in
BEREHE investing activities (1,239,817) (963,071)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
#HIE2011E12B31BILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Kt i E 7 FZETT
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
MEES FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RNV Dividends paid to owners
PR 2 BB of the Company (238,609) (191,627)
[EENREE - Dividends paid to
fi% 5 2 f% 8 non-controlling interests (62,916) (54,322)
e IT 2 IR Issue of share capital 5,571 —
FILE N Proceeds from borrowings 1,337,643 884,801
EEEN Repayments of borrowings (723,683) (586,979)
RETDHEREEHR Net cash from financing activities 318,006 51,873
ReREASEEYN Net (decrease) increase in cash
E R 2) &40 and cash equivalents (331,187) 349,151
FUZHREeRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 893,340 520,189
EXSE) & Effect on exchange rate changes 37,899 24,000
FRZEER Cash and cash equivalents
REEEY at end of year 24 600,052 893,340

i \ 78 Autzranad
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of its principal
place of business is No. 15, The 3rd Street, Tianjin Economic-
Technological Development Area, Tianjin, PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged
in trading of spare parts of machineries and raw materials. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant
noodles, beverages and bakery products. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
which collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

These financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2010
financial statements except for the adoption of the new/revised
HKFRS effective from the current year that are relevant to the
Group as detailed in note 4 to the financial statements. A
summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have
carefully assessed the working capital and financing
requirements of the Group and the Company in the foreseeable
future, as the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by US$991,942,000 (2070: net current liabilities of
US$612,947,000) and the Company's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by US$52,193,000 (2070. net
current liabilities of US$97,826,000) at the end of the reporting
period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group
and continuing profitable operations, the directors are satisfied
that the Group has sufficient resources to meet in full its
financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is historical cost, except for available-
for-sale financial assets at fair value and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which have been measured
at fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.



(b)

REEXE

IRE MR BIEARR R R
BRAREESF12A31B2HE
HBE - RETRRAMBERERNHE
HREFERAQFAER - FEFBHE
ME R —2 -

AEEAMERRZBETRS
BN BERESR X5 WXk
B 2R - B QAR
MEASEEGEEZ BT
B YREAHNBARESR
EHIERLEAR -

LEBRRERBIZ2IINEEER
U a2k A R R AR & B iR L
ZKESEA - BANBBIREGEE
soREY - BREEETHES
ARNBRESHEE AGRIRLH
DEEREEFEZ LD BRERE
& ABREARBESDHK
RiEs FTE R IE 77 Al HERR Y LL I
EANKBE T ZEFRDBBR
ez o FAEEERBEZRWEN
TEHIREE o

7B 2 E W 55 AR FR

AEEREBEREZEKENZIAR
BRARABRR R D BB R Em
oMh - EHBRARRAXARRER
ARl RERD kD BB RE
@ BME LRSS HRE
mABEAR -

L]

Ak B By &E

Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries as at 31 December each year. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position, separately from equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
that entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, is measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to the owners of the Company and the
non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
determined at the date when control is lost and (ii) the
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests
at the date when control is lost. The amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the disposed subsidiary is recognised on the same basis as
would be required if the owners of the Company had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary is accounted
for as a financial asset, associate, jointly controlled entity or
others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on
which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs or valuation
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and
depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:
— For instant noodles

and beverages 12 years

— Others 5 to 10 years
Electrical appliances and equipment 5 years
Miscellaneous equipment 3 to 10 years
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(d) Construction in progress

(e)

()

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
all construction expenditure and other direct costs,
including interest costs, attributable to such projects. Costs
on completed construction works are transferred to the
appropriate asset category. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land that are
classified as operating leases. The premiums are stated at
cost and are amortised over the period of the lease on a
straight-line basis to the profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
interest in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss. The carrying amount of the interest in a subsidiary is
reduced to its recoverable amount on an individual basis.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when (i) the Group’s
contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial asset
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. A financial
liability is derecognised only when the liability is
extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets or
financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are direct attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial
liabilities.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in the profit or loss.
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(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including trade and other receivables
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are not held for trading. They are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, except
where receivables are interest-free loans and without any
fixed repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at cost
less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition over
the period to maturity. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation
process are recognised in the profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated at this category
or not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in
value recognised as other comprehensive income and
separate component of equity until the assets are sold,
collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the assets are
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive
income shall be reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less
impairment loss.
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(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase
in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
determined the impairment not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, a
cumulative loss comprising the difference between its
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously
recognised impairment loss, is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity instrument are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
fair value of available-for-sale financial asset after
recognition of impairment loss is recognised in equity.
Reversal of impairment loss of available-for-sale debt
instruments are reversed through profit or loss, if the
increase in fair value of the financial asset can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.
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(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at
cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings and other non-
current payables. All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless
the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer of the contract to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder of the contract for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. The financial guarantee contracts of the
Company represent the financial guarantees in respect of
credit facilities issued to its subsidiaries. The fair values of
the financial guarantees have not be recognised in the
statement of financial position of the Company, as the
estimation of the fair values of the financial guarantees
would not be meaningful and practicable due to related
party nature of the instruments.
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HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Cash equivalents

(i)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("functional currency”). The Company’s functional currency
is United States Dollars (“US$") and majority of its
subsidiaries have Renminbi (“RMB") as their functional
currency. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in US$, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.
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(k)

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

income and expenses for each income statement
presented are translated at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year;

all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, which includes the
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation and the loss of control of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences deferred in the separate component
of equity relating to that foreign operation is recognised in
the profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase
and, where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is calculated using the
weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments may be impaired or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is
recognised as income immediately.
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HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the respective borrowings,
that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

(n) Operating leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as
operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the profit or loss as an integral
part of the net consideration agreed for the use of the
leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(o)

(p)

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income over the years necessary to match the grant on a
systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
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(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are generally funded by payments
from employees and the Group, taking into account of the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The Group’s
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods, which is
discounted to the present value and reduced by the fair
value of any plan assets.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial
position represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and
losses and unrecognised past service cost, and reduced by
the fair value of plan assets, if any. Any asset resulting from
this calculation is limited to the net total of any cumulative
unrecognised net actuarial losses and past service costs,
plus the present value of any future refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan. If there is
no change or a decrease in the present value of the
economic benefits, the entire net actuarial gains or losses
with the past service cost of the current period is
recognised immediately.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, which
exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of the
Group's defined benefit obligations and the fair value of
plan assets are amortised over the expected average
remaining working lives of the participating employees.
Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent
that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’'s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share-based payment reserve within equity.
The fair value is determined using the binomial model
taking into account the terms and conditions of the
transactions, other than conditions linked to the price of
shares of the Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
year(s) in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award (“vesting date”). During
the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the review,
with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve within
equity.
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(g) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(r)

Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will
be transferred to share premium account. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits. Share-based payment
transactions in which the Company grants share options to
subsidiaries’ employees are accounted for as an increase in
value of interest in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position which is eliminated on consolidation,

with a corresponding credit to the reserve within equity.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Taxation (Continued)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) Has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) Is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

(t)

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make

strategic decisions.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) BEEMBEREENZRRES (u) Future changes in HKFRS
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At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised standards and amendments to HKFRS that are not
yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not
early adopted.

Amendments to Presentation of Financial

BEMBHRE UBEBRLNZR

AERIZE 15 —BREE AR HKFRS 1 (Revised) Statements -Severe

ZAEFT AR =N Hyperinflation and Removal

(#1458 35]) HnEz of Fixed Dates for First-time
[ E 5 £ Adopters [

BEUMBHRE M ITA K& Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

AR 757 —BEERT Disclosures -Transfer
ZABET AR B E of Financial Assets [/

BEAUBHRE ofITA: KEF Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting
AR 757 — & F A E Financial Assets and
ZABET AR EHEE Financial Liabilities

j‘fgf‘ f[4]

BEAEGFER AEH —EL Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax:
F12% 2 HIE - e Recovery of Underlying
(PN HH & E Assets 2/

BEESHER oHEELTH Amendments to HKAS 32  Offsetting Financial Assets and
F325R 2 B EH 50 Financial Liabilities /!

(PN

BEABFER HERKXNER Amendments to Presentation of Financial
F1H 2 — Z23|E M HKAS 1 (Revised) Statements - Presentation of
(PN 2 E W a Items of Other
(#&f&3]) 15 B e Comprehensive Income &I
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195 (20114F)
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%27%(2011&)

BEETHEL REELRR
5 285% AEDE

(20114F) I &

EAUEHRE HFET A
H R FE 5

EABBERE HFEUBEHREXY
B 251058

EREMBRE AETHY
B 1158

EEMBRE RAMEBEEZ
AER|ZE125% 2 HEN

ERMBHRE A FEFTEY
ZEBI| 551358

BBRGERE EXBLEER
#RRE B9 ) FR B, A
ZEg—
#2085

o R201ME7A1BH 2 BRIEZ
FEHBER

@ BR20126 1A 1B 2R REEZ
FEHMER

Bl R201267A 1B 2B FEZ
FEHMER

W R2013FE 1A 1B 2 BREZ
FEHMER

B PA2014F 1A 1B 2R FEIEZ
FEHMER

B R2015E1A1HK 2 BB
FEHMER

AEEEEHRLHBREMAZE
ML RER] 2 BRI 2 BEZE
TG - UL - BT REEE
THAKBERAMBRRNTE
fEH & B E -
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Future changes in HKFRS (Continued)

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 4

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ©

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial
statements ¥

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements ¥

HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests with
Other Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 4

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the

Production Phase of a
Surface Mine ¥

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2011

21 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012

Bl Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

b1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

©1  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015

The directors are in the process of assessing the possible
impact of the future adoption of these new/revised HKFRS,
but are not yet in a position to reasonably estimate their
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRS

The HKICPA has issued one revised HKFRS, a number of
amendments to HKFRS and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Of these, the changes in accounting policy
relevant to the Group’s financial statements are as follows:

HKAS 24 (Revised) - Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 was revised to include a new definition of related
party and to provide a partial exemption from the disclosure
requirements in relation to related party transactions and
outstanding balances, including commitments, with:

(a) a government that has control, joint control or significant
influence over the reporting entity; and

(b) another entity that is a related party because the same
government has control, joint control or significant
influence over both the reporting entity and the other
entity.

The Group adopted the new definition in its accounting policies
but such adoption does not have an effect on the disclosures
made in the consolidated financial statements. The modified
disclosure requirements for government-related entities also do
not impact the Group because the Group is not a government-
related entity.
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W%ﬁi/f?% B2 EBEEK/ 4. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRS (Continued)
= E|J ( J:. "
R T/ \ /

&8 B S R 2 2 (2010%F)
—BRBHMBHEER 2 (2010
F)

&8 W% S £ R Z BOE (20104F)
BRE-FINEEREY B REEINE
A ERARARENBERETOT

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

The improvements comprise a number of improvements to
standards including the following that are considered to be
relevant to the Group:

BESEAE75R (B5]) 2@ T A Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instrument Disclosures:
wWEE: B REMTE Clarification of disclosures

BT ERIMAREERR RFA N
Tﬁ?@&%ﬁﬁ?&?ﬁ%ﬁ?*qz&ﬁﬂéfﬁwwx
RIERI A A S ENER 2 ERE
BEXK - M B RRIMFEICAFEM
AEESRMT A WECDERERAE
AIRHMBRERE

TR G ERE 1R (BFT) ABEHE
HZH M EzEEK

MHEETEAMRE LGRS KSR Z
ARG AR EREHRATE RS
MEPRE  AEBEEREEERA
HESEHRANNERBER IS -

AedizpanRad

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The Amendments clarify the required level of disclosures about
credit risk and collateral held and provide relief from disclosures
previously required for renegotiated loans. The disclosures
about the financial instruments in the consolidated financial
statements in note 36 are conformed to the amended
disclosure requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised): Presentation of Financial

Statements: Clarification of statement of changes in equity

The Amendments clarify that the reconciliation of each
components of other comprehensive income may be presented
either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to
the financial statements. The Group has decided to continue
presenting the reconciliation on the face of the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.
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HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRS (Continued)

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes: Fair value of award credits

The Amendments clarify that when the fair value of award
credits is measured on the basis of the value of the awards for
which they could be redeemed, the fair value of the award
credits should take into account of expected forfeitures as well
as the discounts or incentives that would otherwise be offered
to customers who have not earned award credits from an initial
sale. The adoption of this Interpretation has no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 - Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

The Amendments apply when an entity is subject to minimum
funding requirements for its defined benefits retirement plan
and makes an early payment of contributions to cover those
requirements. The Amendments permit such an entity to treat
the benefit of such an early payment as an asset. Previously, if
the Group did not have an unconditional right to a refund of
surplus, a prepayment was recognised as an expense.

Since there is no minimum funding requirement in the defined
benefit plans of the Group, the adoption of this amendment to
the Interpretation has no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis and
are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of revision
and future periods, in case the revision also affects future
periods.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards to
expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to exercise judgement in the area of asset
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may affect the asset value or such event affecting
the asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level of
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

As at the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The recognition of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
different from the original estimate, a material recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which such estimate is changed.

TURNOVER

The Group’s turnover represents revenue arising from the sale
of goods at invoiced value to customers, net of returns,
discounts and Value Added Tax.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have been identified as the chief
operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group has
identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company’s executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and review of these components’ performance.
The Company’s executive directors consider the business
principally from a product perspective as over 99% of the
Group’s sales and business are conducted in the PRC. Business
reportable operating segments identified are instant noodles,
beverages, instant food (formerly known as “bakery”) and
others.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess segment net profit for the year which
is consistent with that in the financial statements.

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current assets
with the exception of available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Segment
liabilities include trade payables and other payables, interest-
bearing borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and advance
payments from customers with the exception of employee
benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable
to customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the
Group’s operating entities. Meanwhile, over 99% of the
Group’s non-current assets other than available-for-sale
financial assets are located in the PRC.

No revenue from a single external customer amounted to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information for the years ended 31 December
2011 and 2010 are as follows:

EZ T kil Business segment analysis
2011
FEE A
Instant KA AERE Hf Inter-segment &e
noodles  Beverages Instant food Others elimination Group
FEx S S Fxx F£x S
US$'000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
EE S Turnover
INRE B Uz Revenue from external customers 3,592,270 3,998,702 201,432 74,176 — 7,866,580
Dz Wz Inter-segment revenue 119 1,804 67 82,766 (84,756) —
NEEESE Segment revenue 3,592,389 4,000,506 201,499 156,942 (84,756) 7,866,580
NiEE Segment result after finance
(BNKREBER) costs and Profit
RERB AR before taxation 418,044 208,460 5,862 35,459 (4,809) 662,976
HIE Taxation (112,220) (49,252) 330 (2,130) - (163,272)
REEZEF Profit for the year 305,824 159,208 6,192 33,329 (4,849) 449,704
BE Assets
NEEBE Segment assets 2,520,574 3,442,346 173,846 811,780  (1,244,754) 5,703,792
APMBE Unallocated assets 104,982
BELE Total assets 5,808,774
=4 Liabilities
SHERE Segment liabilities 888,017 2,279,707 74,232 723,268 (856,780) 3,108,444
APMERE Unallocated liabilities 14,064
BERE Total liabilities 3,122,508
HER Other information
BARY Capital expenditures 256,935 1,069,045 17,388 6,121 — 1,349,489
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segment analysis (Continued)

In June 2011, the Company completed the disposal of a non-
wholly owned subsidiary and an associate previously classified
as assets held for sale at a consideration in aggregate of
US$98,333,000 to a company jointly controlled by the
Company’s directors. Gain on the disposal of US$39,175,000
has been recognised in the segments results under “Others”
segment and included in the other net income in the
consolidated income statement.

2010
FREM
(AAEH])
Instant 0 g
ki food Inter-
Instant i (formerly £t segment )
noodles  Beverages "Bakery”) Others  elimination Group
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
R Turnover
MREF Kz Revenue from external customers 2,931,555 3,531,911 161,383 56,633 — 6,681,482
PHEz WE Inter-segment revenue 78 1,855 45 87,217 (89,195) —
PHEER Segment revenue 2,931,633 3,533,766 161,428 143,850 (89,195) 6,681,482
PHEE Segment results after
(BENBRHEKER) finance costs 372,698 325,672 3,179 (30,098) (3,308) 668,143
EEBENREE Share of results of associates = = = = 9,978
RIEELEBENA Gain on discontinuation
P2y of equity accounting
for an associate — — — — 68,653
BB AR R Profit before taxation 372,698 325,672 3,179 (30,098) 746,774
i Taxation (66,711) (62,543) (1,800) (3,146) (134,200)
REE 2% Profit for the year 305,987 263,129 1379 (33,244) 612,574
i \ 110 Hedirmsaras
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7. PHER () 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
EBxoBAN (E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2010
AERM
(AIAREE)
Instant A

ki food Inter-

Instant #m (formerly Eft segment 5A

noodles Beverages "Bakery") Others  elimination Group

T£7 FET FET FET FET FET

US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$'000

BE Assets
PBEE Segment assets 1,969,050 2,554,156 136,484 634,322 (641,702) 4,652,310
ROREE Unallocated assets 239,102
BERA Total assets 4,891,412
8 Liabilities
ok =t Segment liabilities 746,089 1,511,49 54,680 405788 (314,710) 2,403,343
rXAERE Unallocated liabilities 118,882
AERE Total liabilities 2,522,225
Hit &R Other information
BARRX Capital expenditures 213,713 732,666 5,002 8,331 5,921 965,633
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8. Hvlzm Kk E M FEEA

8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

2011 2010
FET FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
H fth I &5 Other revenue
B A Interest income 38,564 21,479
BE I ON Dividend income 1,573 1,701
40,137 23,180
Hfth F WA Other net income
B 5 U a5 ) F BE Exchange gains, net 15,811 7,792
i R 2 W e Gain on sales of scrapped materials 23,282 19,770
I 7 47 BY) Government grants 28,521 38,958
BIEHEM L AR ZWZ  Gain on discontinuation of equity
accounting for an associate — 68,653
HE—RI2EREZ Gain on disposal of a non-wholly owned
B AR R —REZAGF  subsidiary and an associate previously
(R DB RFELE classified as assets held for sale 39,175 —
BE) 2 W=
Hity Others 22,979 25,020
129,768 160,193
169,905 183,373

AedizpanRad
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9. BRBLATEF 9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
2011 2010
=T FZETT
LB (FFA) N5 B % © This is stated after charging (crediting): US$’000 US$'000
BKEA Finance costs
AMRBFENTBHEER 2 Interest on bank and other borrowings
RITREMERZ wholly repayable within five years 12,871 8,077
M E Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
B M E X HER A A property, plant and equipment
W - ERKK at weighted average capitalisation
(iEFAER XA rate of 1.32% (2010: 1.36%)
1.32% (2010 : 1.36%) (3,499) (1,566)
9,372 6,511
Him B Other items
BEIXA(BRIEES Staff costs (including directors’
%) - remuneration):
% K T B Salaries and wages 562,550 444,390
LARE R S E kD Equity-settled share-based
X it 2 5K3E payment expenses 11,346 5,020
RIRESKA Pension costs:
FE KRG E Defined contribution plans 64,072 42,931
L E 18 F 5t &l Defined benefit plans 3,328 1,364
ZHMER : Auditor’s Fees:
% 21 AN B Auditor's remuneration 1,343 1,086
I 2 1% AR 75 Non-audit services 121 190
BEEFEKAE Cost of inventories 5,778,611 4,782,037
e Depreciation 317,544 275,054
+ A A 5 (B 2 4 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 3,697 2,544
W - HER Impairment loss of property, plant
R RERBE (B and equipment (included in other
BREREMEEER) operating expenses) 4,169 35,520
BEYEERLY Minimum lease payments in respect
RIEFE & of operating lease charges for premises 58,967 40,121
HEME - HBERRE (Gain) Loss on disposal of property,
< (W) B8 plant and equipment (74) 8,083
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10.EEREHKEEMS 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS
RRREZRE W R EN 2 B 8 EE The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or receivable
™ by the Company’s directors are as follows:
2011

H&R NRex BERE

il & fta ZRE  HEHR

EZHE  Salaries  Discre- Share- Retirement
Directors' and other tionary NGt based  scheme @5t
fees emoluments  bonuses  Sub-total payments contribution Total

fEx  TEz  fRx  FEr fEn FEr FEz
USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  US$'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000

HIES: Executive directors:
REM Wei Ing-Chou 200 990 a7 1,617 2,607 1 4,225
HER Takeshi Ida 80 16 - 9 - - 9
REE Wu Chung-Yi 50 4 - 54 - - 54
RER Wei Ying-Chiao 50 16 - 66 - - 66
EER Ryo Yoshizawa 50 3 - 82 - - 82
FEA—H Junichiro Ida 50 16 - 66 - - 66
BUFHTEZE . Independent non-executive directors:
hE# Hsu Shin-Chun 50 16 - 66 - - 66
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 50 12 - 62 - - 62
KEEE Michihiko Ota 2 8 - 30 - - 30
BEAN Daisuke Okada 28 4 - 32 - - 32

630 1,114 427 2,1 2,607 1 4,179

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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10.EEREREEMS &)
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

R2011F6 130 - KHBE LEE On 13 June 2011, Mr Michihiko Ota resigned as an
RARBNBEIIENTEZ B [ independent non-executive director of the Company and Mr
B MEHANEEHEZERARFL Daisuke Okada was appointed as an independent non-executive
BIEMITESE - £2012F1H3 director of the Company. On 3 January 2012, Mr Daisuke
B MBANEEFRANAR/NEL Okada resigned as an independent non-executive director of
JEMITEE B AB  RARTE the Company and Mr Hiromu Fukada was appointed as an

WERERARRARINBLIENITES o independent non-executive director of the Company.

2010

Hek PROZN  RINRE

Bt e ZHE GHERR

ESWE  Salaries  Discre- Share-  Retirement
Directors’ ~ and other tionary INg based  scheme &
fees emoluments  bonuses  Sub-total  payments contribution Total

T fxr  FXr  FAxr TEAmr  TET  TER
US§'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  US$'000

HIES: Executive directors:
RIEM Wei Ing-Chou 200 760 384 1,344 1,112 1 2,457
gk Takeshi Ida 80 4 - 84 - - 84
RER Wu Chung-Yi 50 12 = 62 = = 62
RER Wei Ying-Chiao 50 16 = 66 = = 66
HER Ryo Yoshizawa 50 16 = 66 = = 66
HmAE -5 Junichiro Ida 50 16 - 66 - - 66
BAUFHTES :  Independent non-executive directors;
RER Hsu Shin-Chun 50 12 - 62 - - 62
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 50 8 — 58 — — 58
KREX Michio Kuwahara 13 4 - 17 - - 17
AREE Michihiko Ota 29 8 - 37 - - 37
622 856 384 1,862 1,112 1 2,975
MR20115F K20105F12A31 B IEFE No directors have waived emoluments in respect of the years
WEREEHREEDRME - ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.
REBLRERBFESMAREE M No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
& HEEZEFINARE B &S L as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
SRAREEREBUELEE - compensation for loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

10.EEkaHEEHS @) 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
REBEIZESHFALBEIML (2070 The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
F:fy) 855 EWeFBER L Group for the year include one director (2070: one) whose
X o E 4RI (20104F : 4f7) A+ 2 emoluments is reflected in the analysis presented above. Details
[} = R I N of the emoluments of the remaining four individuals (2070:

four) are as follows:

2011 2010

FET FEEE

USs$’000 US$:000

FekEMme Salaries and other emoluments 1,636 1,453
VARG 7 219 2 38 Share-based payments 3,514 1,600
TE4L Discretionary bonuses 525 443
RRR R 5T 84 50 Retirement scheme contribution 4 5
5,679 3,501

“ 116 RediaRag
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments were paid to the four highest paid individuals

N~ as follows:
PN
i < 4 5 Emoluments band Number of individuals
2011 2010
576,924 T £705,128% T US$576,924 to US$705,128
(4,500,0017% 7t £ 5,500,000 7T) (HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,500,000) — 1
705,129% T £833,333% T US$705,129 to US$833,333
(5,500,001 7T £ 6,500,000 7T) (HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,500,000) — 1
833,334% 7. £961,5638% T US$833,334 to US$961,538
(6,500,001 7t 27,500,000/ 75 (HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,500,000) 1 —
961,539 L £1,089,744% T US$961,539 to US$1,089,744
(7,500,001 7T £ 8,500,000/ T (HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,500,000) — 1
1,089,745 L& 1,217,949% 7T US$1,089,745 to US$1,217,949
(8,500,0017% 7t £ 9,500,000 7T.) (HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,500,000) — 1
1,217,950 JL £ 1,345,154 T US$1,217,950 to US$1,345,154
(9,500,0017 7t 210,500,000/ 7r.) (HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,500,000) 1 —
1,345,155 L £ 1,474,359 7T US$ 1,345,155 to US$1,474,359
(10,500,001 7 % 11,500,000/ 7T.) (HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,500,000) — —
1,474,360% 7L £1,602,564% 7T US$1,474,360 to US$1,602,564
(11,500,0017% JT = 12,500,000 7t) (HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,500,000) — —
1,602,565% 7L £1,730,769% 7T US$1,602,565 to US$1,730,769
(12,500,001 7z = 13,500,000 7t (HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,500,000) — —
1,730,770 L £1,858,974% T US$1,730,770 to US$1,858,974
(13,500,001 7T & 14,500,000/ 7T.) (HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,500,000) 2 —
4 4
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HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

11. B 18 11. TAXATION
2011 2010
=T FZETT
Us$°000 Us$'000
AEEHIE - Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax
PEEEREHR
REE Current year 143,516 135,188
LERTEE (Z50) 2 5H##E  (Over)/Under provision in prior year (5,446) 698
138,070 135,886
EEHE Deferred taxation
EERERDZ Origination and reversal of temporary
Ty ERFE differences, net 1,438 (31,236)
BRAEERFEZ Effect of withholding tax on the
Bt /&8 2~ &) /] it 5 B distributable profits
B2 R (K77£30) of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries (Note 30) 23,764 29,550
25,202 (1,686)
AEEHIBLEE Total tax charge for the year 163,272 134,200

\Il8

HERST MNEAQERAKEZI
ABUAERITIA -

K201 FER2010F WA EE 2 A d
R8RS I IE BB I B E A H BT
SHERTAE - BXRBE BT
I ETIREE -

ZETHZETRERHEREMDE
TSN ARBRMNMELAR - HPEM
EMBBEEMREHRB25% (2010%F -
25%) °

Hetizanad

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the
Company and the Group.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group
entities either incurred losses for taxation purpose or had no
assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years
ended 2011 and 2010.

For the PRC subsidiaries not entitled to a preferential PRC
enterprise income tax, the applicable PRC enterprise income tax
is at a statutory rate of 25% (20710: 25%).



NERERBEESHEFEM - KRR
FEBFE B BIKT B A R AT B E
RRABEIINGRE S ERNTEMR
PR o RSB A I B A BRI E
R ER MR - R2007512
A 31H L ATIR15% 5 8 = R 84
TEMREH  SHEREENFER
m o REEAEE T FEMNARE
HBEEEEE  IREMTEZERH
RERTPBMERSEH - REHRES
FREB RGP ALESR -

BB - BHBAERRARTLEE
RHEEMBH(EREAERA DA
FE B BE A B B R BUR R RE RO B D)
(A1 %[20111585%) - AL R B ARER
i A B R B R E IR E
¥ EEEEEETEBAGLE
BUARITO%A LB - FE2011EFEE
2020F F E - BIE15% 1 B K Bk
EMBH - At - AEERFEIFH
EHEBAREEEMEARI15%
(2010 : 15%) °

BIBRBE BB AR B EMSR AR
BRI A (H)£[2007]1395%) -
H2008F 1A 1H#E » [RZXER X
BEBORMME - EFMBEHITES
FABRTBEIEERE - Hep - =
ROEMBHIG%HE RN E
2008F & 18% M X #1 17 + 2009F &
20% 7 R IT © 2010F £ 22 % Hi X
1T+ 2011 F K 24% M EH 17 -
20125 R AR 25% B R 1T o %
BRRIEZI5%NEECEMBBR
K AEtE I MEAR A E#EZR
HEBCEMBHMBXRZIEH -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Subsidiaries in the PRC which engage in manufacture and sale
of instant noodles, beverages and bakery products are subject
to tax laws applicable to foreign investment enterprises in the
PRC. Most of the subsidiaries are located at state-level
economic development zones and were entitled to a
preferential PRC enterprise income tax rate of 15% before 31
December 2007. Also, they were fully exempt from PRC
enterprise income tax for two years starting from the first
profit-making year followed by a 50% reduction for the next
three years, commencing from the first profitable year after
offsetting all unexpired tax losses carried forward from the
previous years.

According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui [2011] no. 58) on
the Grand Development of Western Region jointly issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and
China Customs, foreign investment enterprises located in the
western region of PRC with principal revenue of over 70%
generated from the encouraged business activities are entitled
to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for 10 years from 1
January 2011 to 31 December 2020. Accordingly, certain
subsidiaries located in the Western Region are entitled to a
preferential rate of 15% (20710:15%).

Pursuant to the State Council Circular on the Implementation of
the Transitional Concession Polices for Enterprise Income Tax
(Guo Fa [2007] no. 39), enterprises previously entitled to a
reduced tax rate shall have a grace period of five years
regarding the tax reduction commencing on 1 January 2008;
the subsidiaries which were entitled to a 15% enterprise
income tax rate will be subjected to tax rates of 18% in 2008,
20% in 2009, 22% in 2010, 24% in 2011 and 25% in 2012
and thereafter. The subsidiaries that have been granted a
preferential income tax rate of 15% in the Grand Development
of Western Region shall continue to enjoy the preferential
income tax rate until expiry.
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HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. ®HE (&)

Qi

11. TAXATION (Continued)

NEEE 2 BB AR BEAE R R 26%5t
B (2010%F : 25%)E T FG | 2 2B 56

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate

MIBZZRIR - in the PRC of 25% (2010: 25%) as follows:
RIEMA X ZHER Reconciliation of tax expenses
2011 2010
ES FZETT
Us$°000 Us$'000
B B¢ A A Profit before taxation 662,976 746,774
1= BDE E B E 25% Income Tax at statutory tax rate of
ZBIB(2010%F © 25%) 25% in the PRC (20710:25%) 165,744 186,694
AR A X Non-deductible expenses 17,059 14,242
EERBBA Tax exempt revenue (31,869) (20,870)
RERIAEE Unrecognised tax losses 12,081 5,066
RERERHMEER Unrecognised temporary differences 201 (27,605)
MR BE IR Utilisation of previously
BRMRIBEEE unrecognised tax losses (109) (231)
BERERR Effect of preferential tax rates (10,638) (22,888)
AT N L s Effect of tax relief on PRC’s subsidiaries
== RN D o g ) in Western Region (7.852) (17,287)
RARE B E 2 B AF Effect of tax concessions granted to
MRz BEERRR the Group’s PRC subsidiaries (4,247) (13,631)
WAL BN E 2B 2AF Effect of withholding tax on
A4S R FDE 2 TRIR R the distributable profits
(K7 2% 30) of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries (Note 30) 23,764 29,550
LARTFE (%5F) 25t #E  (Over)/Under provision in prior years (5,446) 698
RNEFELZIREE Over provision in current year 4,341 —
HAty Others 243 462
REEHIE Tax expense for the year 163,272 134,200
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
12. R R L&A 12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY
% 3R FE 15 4R & & 71 48,447,000 T The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
(20104F : 1,904,000 7T) B R ANA includes a profit of US$48,447,000 (2010: profit of
BlZARB AIEHER - US$1,904,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.
Lt S FEEAR QD R AE E R 2 FE Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for
R the year:
2011 2010
FET FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
ERARRIRE NEE Amount of consolidated profit
B iR 3R (b AR & s A attributable to owners dealt with
in the Company’s financial statements 48,447 1,904
W RFEEFN 2B Dividends from subsidiaries and
MIE AR REEE QTR E + associates attributable to the profits
I E R F AR ERIKE  of the previous financial years,
approved and paid during the year 116,832 44,081
RNEFE AR R T Company’s profit for the year 165,279 45,985

2011 Annual Report %8 121 ‘



BR B Bt 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

13. R E 13. DIVIDENDS
(a) RARHEEARREEREG 2K (a) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
S to the year:
2011 2010
ET FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
EERABER 2 RBARKE  Final dividend proposed after the
R EAR3.755 1L end of the reporting period of
(20104 : US3.75 cents (2010: US4.27 cents)
R EFER4.27F M) per ordinary share 209,629 238,556

R2012F3A21HMNE:% 25
BRARBEARBARETR LT AR
3. 753l o bR AR SN B
BHRAKRP IR ABEMRKRE - B
WAR A EEZ20129 128 31
HiIEFEZREB &R o

(b) MAF AL E R EFBN £ —
MHREETARBDEBEAZIES

At meeting held on 21 March 2012, the directors
recommended the payment of final dividend of US3.75
cents per ordinary share. The proposed final dividend has
not been recognised as dividend payables in the statement
of financial position, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31
December 2012.

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the

%2 year:
2011 2010
FET FZETT
Us$'000 Us$'000
RAFRAERKAEA  Final dividend in respect of the
& 2 B R A R H previous financial year, approved
f% B &K T E Ak and paid during the year, of
4.27% Al (20104 - US4.27 cents (2010: US3.43 cents)
7 fif 35 iR 3. 435 1l)1) per ordinary share 238,609 191,627
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE2011F12831BILFE

BR B FrsE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

follows:

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is as

2011 2010
RRRIREREFEANEME  Profit attributable to ordinary
@AM (F=7T) shareholders (US$'000) 419,545 476,787
EEITEBBRZIME  Weighted average number of
FHRE (FR) ordinary shares ('000) 5,588,567 5,586,793
BRREAREM (M) Basic earnings per share (US cents) 7.51 8.53
(b) R EHEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
2011 2010
KABBRERFEA Profit attributable to ordinary
FeAh A (F=7T) shareholders (US$'000) 419,545 476,787
i P AN HE P 19 8K Weighted average number of
(#7) (T ordinary shares (diluted) ("000)
ERTEAKRZ Weighted average number of
PRE 35 R 2K ordinary shares 5,588,567 5,586,793
R A B AR Effect of the Company’s share
e e option scheme 24,949 20,402
ARt E SRS Weighted average number of
M 2 B AR ordinary shares for the purpose
InHE - #3 2k of calculated diluted earnings per share 5,613,516 5,607,195
FREE M (RI1L)  Diluted earnings per share (US cents) 7.47 8.50
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HZE2011F 128318 ILFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

15. 1% ~ MBERRE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

rE Group
RV E L
KER&E Electrical
Machinery  appliances ~ MERE  ERIE
BF and and Miscellaneous  Construction At
Buildings ~ equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
RABHE-FHZ  Recondliation of carrying amount -
201012 year ended 31 December 2010
JNHILFE
REA At beginning of year 461,086 1,298,637 13,471 74,913 368,531 2,216,638
NE Additions 9,394 253,296 3,183 75,310 624,450 965,633
B R Transfer upon completion 101,199 308,357 215 14,029 (423,800) =
WEBSE (H7)  Impairment loss (Note ) (5,846) (28,704) — (970) = (35,520)
e Disposals (3,180) (4,776) (280) (2,476) — (10,712)
BRERE Transferred to assets classified
HEEE as held for sale (1,637) (1,599) (77) (1,313) (217) (4,843)
ik Depreciation (30,307) (190,256) (3,877) (50,614) — (275,054)
ERER Exchange differences 14,532 36,439 1,583 2,209 12,031 66,794
REEH At end of the reporting period 545241 1,671,394 14,218 111,088 580,995 2,922,936
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

15. 9% - BRRIE (&) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

r£E (&) Group (Continued)

EERRE
BERRE  Electrical
Machinery  appliances ~ HE®XfE  ERIR
BT and and Miscellaneous Construction &t
Buildings  equipment equipment equipment in progress Total
FER TER TER TER TER TER
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

REEHHKR-HZ  Reconciliation of carrying

2011%12R amount -year ended

JNALEFE 31 December 2011
HREA At beginning of year 545241 1,671,394 14,218 111,088 580,995 2,922,936
hE Additions 20,904 225,592 4,280 113,767 984,946 1,349,489
ERBER Transfer upon completion 86,548 486,191 282 19,725 (592,746) -
FEEE (B:)  Impairment loss (Note i) — (4,169) — — - (4,169)
HEFERE Reversal of impairment

(Afati) loss (Note i) — 3,500 — — — 3,500
& Disposals (50,553) (3,058) (282) (2,552) — (56,445)
neE Depreciation (36,191) (199,637 (4,455) (77,261) —  (317,544)
ELZR Exchange differences 25,626 72,431 535 5,955 27,558 132,105
REER At end of the reporting period 591,575 2,252,244 14,578 170,722 1,000,753 4,029,872
R2011%E181R At 1 January 2011
[R{E Cost 789,750 2,714,615 34,176 218,621 580,995 4,338,157
2EHEA Accumulated depreciation and

HEESR impairment losses (244,509)  (1,043,221) (19,958)  (107,533) —  (1,415221)
REFE Net carrying amount 545,241 1,671,394 14,218 111,088 580,995 2,922,936
2011128318 At 31 December 2011
R Cost 843,503 3,498,465 38,174 355,998 1,000,753 5,736,893
REHEM Accumulated depreciation and

HEER impairment losses (251,928)  (1,246,221) (23,596)  (185,276) - (1,707,021)
REFE Net carrying amount 591,575 2,252,244 14,578 170,722 1,000,753 4,029,872
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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AEE (#)
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\ 126

FAN - NEBERT TEHNBREAL
W7 RETEERORA - FTE T R
BB AT E S RE o — LR REE
RUFESGERIEFEERE - 5L
1 25 5% 5 BR T 1B [ UL R B 4,169,000
%7t (20104 : 29,674,000 7T ) °
= F B FEAZ 0 IRk B8 B 1 2 A 2 M 28
F B R BB K 55,846,000 7T ©
1 28 35 18 2 AT Uk B 2B TS TOARBR R
HERARBERERE A miE EREKS
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EFEEREIREZERERARE
EEAANZER - NEtEH - A&
B ST T LR E 2 TR
© %8 - B %R (B 18 5 3,5600,0003 7T
(20104 : #&) -

Hetizanad

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Notes :

)

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

During the year, the Group carried out a review of the
recoverable amounts of its manufacturing machineries,
having regards to the ongoing programme of
modernisation, expansion and the introduction of new
product lines. The review determined that a number of
those assets were to be impaired due to prolonged idle and
technical obsolescence. Accordingly, the carrying amounts
of these manufacturing machineries were written down by
US$4,169,000 (2010: US$29,674,000). The impairment
losses of US$5,846,000 in respect of certain production
plants were made in prior year mainly due to closure of
non-core production factories. The estimates of the
recoverable amounts of these manufacturing plant and
machineries, principally based on their fair value less costs
to sell, determined by reference to the recent observable
market prices for similar assets in the market. During the
year, due to successful reformation, certain machineries
which have been impaired previously, are currently used in
production of more profitable products. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group re-assessed the recoverable
amounts of these machineries and impairment loss of
US$3,500,000 was reversed (20710: US$Nil).



BR B FrsE

(]
. . [
Notes to the Financial Statements °®
Bz201E12ANALFE 000 0@
For the year ended 31 December 2011
15. 9% - BRRIE (&) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
(b) &2 H] (b) Company
2011 2010
KERRE HE kR
Machinery — HERfE Machinery — HTEZR
and Miscellaneous &t and  Miscellaneous ait
equipment  equipment Total equipment equipment Total
T£7x FEx FET FET FET FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000
BREIMEYIBR  Reconciliation of carrying amount
R E 1] At beginning of the year 90 30 120 118 13 131
NE Additions - 12 12 - 3 3
& Disposals (1) (1) ) (1) (1) 2)
e Deprediation (22) (9) (31) (34) (5) (39)
ERER Exchange differences - - - 7 - 7
R&EER At end of the reporting period 67 3 99 90 30 120
M12H31H  At31December
R1E Cost 835 62 897 846 7 917
S Accumulated depreciation (768) (30) (798) (756) (@1) (797)
REFE Net carrying amount 67 )] 99 90 30 120
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16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

PN/
Company

2011 2010

=T FETL

US$’000 Us$’000

JE LA  IRREFIER  Unlisted shares, at cost 343,739 343,739
HHEARIRE ZEm Contribution to a subsidiary 6,422 2,542
R (B &5 18 Impairment losses (33,065) (33,065)
317,096 313,216

JE U BT BB A B FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 248,764 247,821
DoRI=N SR Impairment losses (10,853) (9,094)
237,911 238,727
AN ENGIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (50,513) (99,078)
504,494 452,865

HRBHIERRAERZEEEAR
HAam ¢ - BEBEERINZ
M8 A R 2= AR TE1 1B.36,613,0003E 7T
A (20104 : 36,613,000 7T) CR{E
E B AT ©

HRBHH B R RRAFERBIFE
EIEWER REREERESR - HE
B 18 17,124,000% jt ( 2010F -
17,102,000% 7¢) B R5| R % T B~
A)BR 181,759,000 JT 2 f& W 08
A (20104 : 9,094,0003 7¢) (R B
E B AT ©

Hetizanad
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Impairment losses were recognised for certain interest in
subsidiaries with carrying amounts of US$36,613,000 (2070:
US$36,613,000) (before deducting the impairment loss)
because their carrying values exceed the recoverable amounts
of the assets.

An impairment was recognised for amounts due from certain
subsidiaries with carrying amounts of US$17,124,000 (20710:
US$17,102,000) (before deducting the impairment loss)
because the subsidiaries had suffered continuous losses with no
positive cash flows in the foreseeable future. Impairment loss of
US$1,759,000 (20710: US$9,094,000) has been recognised
during the year.
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17.

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed repayment term but are not expected to be
realised/repaid within the next twelve months after the end of
the reporting period.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 are
shown in note 39.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for medium-term
leasehold land in the PRC. The cost is amortised over the
leasehold period. The amount to be amortised within twelve
months after the end of the reporting period amounted to
US$4,290,000 (20710: US$2,866,000) and is included in
prepayments and other receivables.
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HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

18.AtHEERMEE 18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
RE KA F
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
ETT FET ET FET
US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 US$°000
REBLIZ £ Equity security, listed
R 2 T E outside Hong Kong
NiE At fair value 92,518 109,251 55,095 73,937
IEREES Private investment funds
NRhE At fair value 8,496 — 8,496 —
FEETRARES Equity securities, unlisted
R1E At costs 11,452 11,452 3,140 3,140
Rk (B B 18 Impairment losses (8,044) (8,044) (342) (342)
3,408 3,408 2,798 2,798
104,422 112,659 66,389 76,735
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TR AR BEAEEELSR S
FHNRAHRABAREEE - AAEBEEE
EHRERARBAUEAABRRESE
HEREAN - ©%/516,733,000% T
(2010 : UBEFABERBREERE
#1#E11,109,000% 7T) °

FEREESARMESIINES 2
& DRAKIREBREENER
BEEABCERRIREBELZSN
BHEREEAR @ RERATERE
RAEEH o NATBIE RT A AGH H It
£ H & & & # 5 50,000,000% 7T
(2010 : #%) - T E 1 8,496,000% 7T
EREEHALHE - WEESZ AR
BEAEBERECEREE BELT
fif o
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The fair value of the listed securities is determined based on the
guoted market bid price available in the Taiwan Stock
Exchange. Changes in fair value of US$16,733,000 (2070:
US$11,109,000 were credited to investment revaluation
reserve) were debited to investment revaluation reserve.

The private investment funds represent investments in two
overseas funds which were set up by limited partnership in
Cayman Islands and liability limited by shares in British Virgin
Islands respectively, aim at achieving substantial return. The
Company has entered into agreements and committed to invest
in aggregate of US$50,000,000 (2070: US$Nil) in these funds,
of which amount of US$8,496,000 was paid during the
reporting period. The fair values of these funds are valued by
the respective investment managers at the end of the reporting
period.
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18 AREESHEE 18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
JEFMIRERIE FTMRAE S 2 KH The unlisted investments represent long-term investments in
KE - ERTBEEEHHAAALEBENE unlisted equity securities. They are measured at cost less
EHEEAEE  EERAFLME impairment loss at the end of each reporting period because
B2 AR BETEASEHETE - BIE the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
RS AR EREE B 2R that the directors are of the opinion that their fair values
Bt E - cannot be measured reliably.
AEEREESEAAHEESHE The Group has no intention to dispose of the investments in
ENRE - available-for-sale financial assets.
AHEESREEDUTIEES The available-for-sales financial assets are denominated in the
A : following currencies:
rEE PN
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
E3 FZET E7T FET

Us$°000 US$°000 Us$°000 US$°000

ETT us$ 9,510 1,014 9,510 1,014
AR RMB 732 732 — —
e New Taiwan dollar (“NTD") 93,954 110,809 56,653 75,495
HAh Others 226 104 226 226
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

NEeEMEE PROFIT OR LOSS
rEH KA T
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET FET FET FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$000
BEEERE Investments held
for trading
—REBEBAINET Z  Equity securities,
IR A7 5 listed outside Hong Kong 551 762 551 762
—EXTEKES US$ currency fund 9 9 9 9
560 771 560 771

BRRBEIIGEIERREREE S
BMEETATINERIE :

denominated in the following currencies:

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

AEE b NN
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FETT FEETE FETT FEETE
US$’000 US$°000 US$’000 US$°000
x7T us$ 9 9 9 9
e NTD 551 762 551 762
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20. € 20. INVENTORIES
AEE
Group
2011 2010
FET FET
US$’000 US$'000
R 4 wt Raw materials 145,095 169,556
EE & Work in progress 14,909 11,822
&I mm Finished goods 152,558 128,423
312,562 309,801
21. B BR =X 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

AEBZHERBHS/EIUWER - &4
THHEZEEHREER30EN
R o BRARYSRZR HRERERRE
BEBB NEEIREZAHNRR
ZERE DI HRMT

The majority of the Group’s sales is cash-on-delivery. The
remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging

from 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables
(net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts), based
on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

rE

Group
2011 2010
FET FZET
Us$’000 Us$'000
0 - 90Kk 0 - 90 days 146,883 121,849
90K A E Over 90 days 8,157 5,881
155,040 127,730

2011 Annual Report 4§

133 ’



21. EWER (&)

BR B B &

Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2011F 128318 ILFEE
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i

BB EME RBE 2 U AR AR i

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Ageing of amounts that are past due but not impaired:

rEE

Group
2011 2010
ES TFET
US$°000 Us$'000

B A IEw BRit 2 JE UK TE Balances exceeded normal credit period:

B EI30R A Within 30 days 4,567 4,147
BEI31ZE 90K 31-90 days 3,214 2,621
B BB R 90K Over 90 days 2,665 1,232
10,446 8,000

18 L6 FE 78 B SORORUEL RO B MR AR SR AR R
ZE PRI B3 R AR SR AR 8% o

BB BRI E R B WRR - =2k
BAREZEZAEREFEENEYR
P mREFEYESANE(L K
0 0 M 55 L BR R AR BR(EORUE - 3
BERERRELRRAYEE - K&
B 3 R 5 ] B2 55 L PR R ARRE A 45
e

RKEREZAARKTIE -
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Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

The trade receivables that are past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. The Group has not impaired these
debtors as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the directors believe that the amounts are
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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22. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

F5E N
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
ki3 EY FEL ET FEL
Note Uss‘000 US$'000 Uss‘000 US$'000
BNEH Prepayments to suppliers for
purchase of goods 5179 8,103 — —
BN RER Prepayments for purchase
of equipments 30,010 28,654 — —
ERIEER Prepaid value-added taxes 71,874 62,550 — —
BNEERY Prepaid operating expenses 119,591 71,789 — =
ERER Loan receivables 22(a) 102,393 57,843 — =
Efth Others 38,767 51,765 992 1,155
367,814 280,704 992 1,155
2 ERER 22(a) Loan receivables

R ERTIRAKE 2B QA
ERTHRM B EEHEIEZ
BRBZHE - HERBERR
EEW - AR —FREERMEF

B B 535%% 7.02% ( 2010:

4.99% F5.60%) ) E K o

ARAREEFAHHEETHNE
FEET _EARZEKE - R
BARITH IS R E 2 AR
KRS MIIMERHE - HEFEE
RERERZAABEREAR
FREEARFR

EHEERZRAEDBIMERN
ZHRE - TERKRGEREER R
MEELBE -

Loan receivables represent the advances by wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company to raw materials suppliers of
the Group for the purpose of the operations use of the
suppliers. The loan receivables are unsecured, repayable
within 12 months from the date of drawdown and bear
interest ranging from 5.35% to 7.02% (2010: from 4.99%
to 5.60%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period, determined based on the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted using prevailing
market rate, approximate their corresponding carrying
amount.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no interest
due but unpaid and no provision had been made for non-
repayment of the advances and interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

23. FE B B 2 B FUIE 23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY

JE L B B8 A B 2 ZIE 2 R 160,000,000
% 7T (20104 : 20,000,000% 7T K
5,000,000 7T ) & BT H - Mt F 2
1.45% (20104 73 5 7% © 1.256% %
1.25%) RIBER—FANEBZER -

Amounts due from a subsidiary of US$160,000,000 (2070:
US$20,000,000 and US$5,000,000) are unsecured, bearing
interest at 1.45% (2010: 1.255% and 1.25% respectively) per
annum and repayable within 1 year.

24, BeRERREER 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
NE
Group
2011 2010
FET FEEE
USs$’000 US$:000
IRITHEBRNIRE Bank balances and cash 590,390 881,316
AR AT 17 3K Pledged bank deposits 9,662 12,024
REERERERIT As stated in the consolidated statement
of cash flows 600,052 893,340

RITERE TER - EREHRAKHE
—RIRTREFRENRITREZE
e

i \ 136  Hedimaran

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank
acceptance bills, granted to the Group by banks.
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2. BEREFRESER () 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
RekERREEH AT EEZ The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
B : following currencies:

rEE

Group
2011 2010
FETT FET
Us$°000 Us$000
AR RMB 500,352 799,484
e uss 81,645 84,836
B 7T EUR 12,897 1,703
H it Others 5,158 7,317
EHMNERBRA ML - PAMFE365F Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk

it o discussion are set out in note 36.
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25, BITR AR 25. ISSUED CAPITAL
KA F]
Company
2011 2010
B4 B SFES N B3k gE FExn
No. of No. of
shares US$’000 shares US$'000
ERE Authorised:
Fh%0.006E T Ordinary shares of
2 EAR US$0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 |7,000,000,000 35,000
BEITRER Issued and fully paid:
R E 1] At the beginning of
the year 5,586,793,360 27,934 |5,586,793,360 27,934
RIE R 2 Shares issued
BT 2D under share
option scheme 3,320,000 17 — —
REER At the end of the
reporting period  5,590,113,360 27,951 |5,586,793,360 27,934

20114 5HE8H - 3,320,000 i #
AT LATREE AN A 7] 3,320,000 3@

BB n

&8 55,5671,000% 7T °

H 17,000 T AR © 4 &R
5,5654,0003% T 5 A & 2 = & Bk °
2,003,000 T A BEEZE R D &R

=F
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Hetizanad
TINGY! (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

During May to August 2011, 3,320,000 options were exercised
to subscribe for 3,320,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
consideration of US$5,571,000 of which US$17,000 was
credited to share capital and the balance of US$5,554,000 was
credited to the share premium account. US$2,003,000 has
been transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the
share premium account.
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26. & & 26. RESERVES
YN Company
&4 B E MERE  BRE REER
1] & 42 1] E  ERfE
Capital %M Exchange Share-based Investment & &7
redemption Share translation  payment revaluation  Retained L
reserve  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
Fxr TEr  TEr  TEr  FER FER FER
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000
R2010518 18 At 1 January 2010 45 330,492 (1,233) 3,030 — 152415 484,749
REEEF Profit for the year = = = = — 45985 45985
Htr2E K5 Other comprehensive income
ERESR Exchange translation difference — = (1,017) = = = (1,017)
TRHESHEAE Fair value change in of available-for-sale
ABEZEY financial assets = = = = 7,518 = 7,518
H2AUBREE Total other comprehensive income — = (1,017) = 7,518 = 6,501
FEERENGAE Total comprehensive
income for the year - — (1,017) — 7518 45,985 52,486
BRDNARRZR S Transactions with owners
of the Company:
BEREERMTM 2B  Equity settled share-based transactions = = - 5,020 - = 5,020
BfF2009F RHARE 2009 final dividend paid - (39212) - - —  (152,415)  (191,627)
BEDAARE Total transactions with owners
PEEE L of the Company - (39212) - 5,020 —  (152,415) (186,607)
#2010€125 318 At 31 December 2010 45 291,280 (2,250) 8,050 7518 45985 350,628
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HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

26. RESERVES (Continued)

Company (Continued)

RHRE MERE BRE REER
i k& i s EREfA
Capital % Exchange Share-based Investment & &%
redemption Share translation  payment revaluation  Retained am
reserve  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
iT TER iT  TE=R T TEn  TExn
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS$'000
R2011E18 18 At 1 January 2011 45 291,280 (2,250) 8,050 7,518 45,985 350,628
REERT Profit for the year - - - - — 165279 165,279
Htr2E K& Other comprehensive income
EREE Exchange translation difference - - 54 - — - 54
ELESRHEE Fair value change in available-for-sale
DREZED financial assets - - - —  (18,842) —  (18,842)
H2AUREE Total other comprehensive income — — 54 —  (18.882) —  (18,788)
FEERENGAE Total comprehensive
income for the year — — 54 — (18,842) 165,279 146,491
BEDNARRZR S Transactions with owners
of the Company:
EREERMTMZHIE  Equity-settled share-based transactions - - - 13349 — — 13349
REBRES %G Share issued under share
2B option scheme - 1,557 - (2,003) — - 5,554
ER2010ERHARE 2010 final dividend paid —  (192,624) - - —  (45,985) (238,609)
BRAARE Total transactions with owners
ZRABE of the Company —  (185,067) - 11346 —  (45,985) (219,706)
R2011€E12R 318 At 31 December 2011 45 106,213 (2,196) 19,396 (11,324) 165279 277,413
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2011 amounted to
US$271,492,000 (2070: US$337,265,000).

Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
foreign currency translation.
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General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve
an amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after
taxation (as reported in the respective statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with
PRC accounting regulations). If the accumulated general reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective PRC
subsidiaries, the enterprise may not be required to make any
further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the
grant date of unexercised share options granted to employees
of the Group and will be dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments as set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve has been set up and will be
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted
for the changes of fair value in available-for-sale financial assets
as set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 March 2008.
The Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions the eligible
participants (as defined below) had or may have made to the
Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to:-

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue at the time the Scheme is
adopted by the shareholders (i.e. 20 March 2008). At the end
of reporting period, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted was 71,194,000 (2070: 53,492,000)
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was 62,273,000
(2010: 49,714,000), representing 1.1% (2070: 0.9%) of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date.
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

(Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to an individual in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant
of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the
shareholders’ approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. The options will be vested after five years from the
date of grant. A nominal consideration at HK$1 was paid by
each option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

(Continued)
BT 2 EBREFERN2010F & Details of share options granted by the Company pursuant to
20MF12ANBEFERNZEZFH N the Scheme and the share options outstanding as at 31
K December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
RITEM
RTEREHE BREZE
Number of Number of TEE THEH
il = share options share options Exercise Exercisable
Grant date granted outstanding price period
2011 2010 HK$
20 March 2008 11,760,000 9,760,000 10,680,000 9.28 21 March 2013 to
200843 A 20H 20 March 2018
2013%F3H21B8 &
201843 H20H
22 April 2009 26,688,000 22,404,000 24,230,000 9.38 23 April 2014 to
2009F 4 A22H 22 April 2019
20144H 238 %
201954 H22H
1 April 2010 15,044,000 13,609,000 14,804,000 18.57 1 April 2015 to
2010F4 /3 1H 31 March 2020
2015F4H1BE
202043 A 31H
12 April 2011 17,702,000 16,500,000 — 19.96 12 April 2016 to
2011544128 11 April 2021

2016F4H12B &
2021548118
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

Movements in the number of option outstanding and their
weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

FEEREDT
Group and Company
2011 2010

AEF INHE 15
TEE BREHE TRE  BEREHEA

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options | exercise price of options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REA] At the beginning of year 12.10 49,714 9.35 37,126
RERITHE Exercised during the year 13.14 (3,320) = =
RE AR Granted during the year 19.96 17,702 18.57 15,044
RERZI Forfeited during the year 15.48 (1,823) 10.24 (2,456)

REEH At the end of the

reporting period 14.18 62,273 12.10 49,714

RITEE R - F AT A AR N
FEH B A23.597T c R A ERERE
2010F NATIE °

MN20115E 128318 » MARITHEER
R MEF%TE 4 A7.865F
(20104 : 8.35%F) o

BREEREZEMHHRR BHIRER
P # 5+ &1 #% 1 79 186,000 Ak #E 2 &
118 -

“ 146 RediaRag

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year was $23.59. No share
option was exercised during the year ended 31 December
2010.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2011 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 7.86 years (2070: 8.35
years).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and up to the
date of these financial statements, 186,000 share options
under the Share Option Scheme were exercised.

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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271 BB EEROX N 2R E ()

g}

BRERXTERZARENRERER
SIERRAAE - A A BERIETE
BEAETE - AXBFEAAERH
BREMFEAFERAZRS - AR
BEZFEAEBRTERTEE - 8
BREAAERERBZERINT : —

27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

(Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted is measured at the
date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions of the share-based
arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently subjective
and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations
of the model used. The inputs into the model are as follows:-

RTIBHELE ZBRE

Share options granted on

20115 20104 20094F 20084
48 12H 4818 4822H 3H20H
12 April 1 April 22 April 20 March
2011 2010 2009 2008
®F¥BRZ Fair value at grant date Z87.61 Fk7.24 FH3.34 FH3.74
AU BT I I T
HK$7.61 HK$7.24 HK$3.34 HK$3.74
per share per share per share per share
KTHZ Share price at grant date £]819.88 FAx18.42 5 1%9.37 5 8.55
W (B BT T BT BT
HK$19.88 HK$18.42 HK$9.37 HK$8.55
per share per share per share per share
TEER Exercise price =) 19.96 Hk18.57 FH%9.38 T Hx9.28
BT BT BT BT
HK$19.96 HK$18.57 HK$9.38 HK$9.28
per share per share per share per share

BERIEN  Risk-free
Z M= interest rate 4.30% 4.10% 2.51% 4.37%
T8 B 18 Expected volatility 31% 33% 36% 40%
T8 B 17 {5 & Expected life 106 104 104 104
10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
A AR B X Expected dividend yield 2% 2% 2% 2%

BHRERRBE - FHEARAK
oY EMBL AR IE - ST EBERER
RERERZEHRBRRIVIZEERE
REZMEE -

R20114F » ER W R R IERZ AHE
s EER D T 2 3K I8 A13,349,000
E T (20104 : 5,020,000 L) °

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the last one year of
share option granted. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate.

During 2011, US$13,349,000 (2070: US$5,020,000) was
charged to profit or loss in respect of equity settled share-based

transactions.

2011 Annual Report F#§

147 ‘



-~ BRE P

0 Notes to the Financial Statements

.Oooo *  HZ 20114128318 L EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. EE£E 28. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
RE PN
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FETT FETT FETT FEIL
US$’000 US$°000 US$’000 US$°000
BITER - #BEH ©  The maturity of the
unsecured bank loans
is as follows:
1R Within one year 700,695 456,876 205,000 157,000
F2F In the second year 107,814 91,964 35,000 40,000
EIFERFELF In the third to fifth years,
(BREEHRE2F) inclusive 441,568 85,295 170,000 25,000
1,250,077 634,135 410,000 222,000
WD A Portion classified as
mEN B EE D current liabilities (700,695) (456,876) (205,000) (157,000)
IEmENEB Non-current portion 549,382 177,259 205,000 65,000

IHEFHFF K A51.32% (20104 -
1.36%) °
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The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank loans

is 1.32% (2010: 1.36%) per annum.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

28. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s and the

FIREAR ¢ Company’s total borrowings by type is as follows:
K& AT
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET FET FET TFE7T
Us$000 US$'000 Us$000 US$'000
B 3 7| & At fixed rates 50,366 60,055 — —
E B X At floating rates 1,199,711 574,080 410,000 222,000
1,250,077 634,135 410,000 222,000

BEERBEUTIHNEREIE :

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

rEHE KA F
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
F X T FZET F X T FZET
Us$’000 Us$'000 Uss$‘000 Us$'000

AR RMB 81,031 9,918 — —
e us$ 1,074,925 535,690 410,000 222,000
Ht JPY 20,025 — — —
BX 7T EUR 74,096 88,527 — —
BEINERB D - R 365 Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and interest rate risk

;);ﬁ o

discussion are set out in note 36.
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29.

\ISO

5 H G 8

AEBRAATEEE2 MATEE
o 77 BT AR A R SR (R SRET I - TR
AEEFEARLEAEZESHE
BZEEBESLELHER - AEERK
N EREANERN  THBEEX
NETRKERERKRZER -

RERANGE

REBENRFERERERHATHE
FIETE - WRKRSEEZFTERUE
BRBFARREEANTHFE
BER - BETENHASBERRES
VREBEMEREEEN A ED QT
([BEFM]) 2 EEMER - B2
BEIEEHHESTENN2011F12
A31 B ATBEF BRI 4R R AR HETT o

Hetizanad

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC for all
PRC employees whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the
relevant portion of the payroll of these employees to the
pension scheme to fund the benefits. The Group has no
obligation for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits for the PRC employees other than the
monthly contributions described above.

Defined benefit plans

The Group has defined benefit plans for Taiwan employees.
Pension obligation is provided based on the length of service
and average monthly salary for the final six months of
employment. The contributions made by the Group during the
year were calculated based on advice from Messrs. Towers
Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Towers Watson”), an independent
actuaries and consultants. The latest actuarial valuation was
performed by Towers Watson as at 31 December 2011 using
the projected unit credit method.
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29. BEIRAMEE (&) 29. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
REBFGE (&) Defined benefit plans (Continued)
REERARAEE R ERFGEIA The amounts included in the statement of financial position
EEZEFLFTATBRRIR 2K arising from the obligation of the Group and the Company in
18 respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows:
K& KA F
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FE FET FET FET
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$000
REREFHRE Present value of unfunded
obligations 33,730 27,037 18,301 15,538
ARBINZ HBE Net actuarial losses not
=S recognised (19,666) (14,940) (9,876) (7,724)
REREBFAEM  Net liability arising from
ODE =R defined benefit obligation 14,064 12,097 8,425 7,814
AEBNEERBEZSHNOT Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations

are as follows:

KE PN/
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET FET FETT FET
USs$’000 Us$’000 US$°000 Us$:000
R E ) At beginning of year 27,037 18,193 15,538 11,009
N4 [ AR 75 B AR Current service cost 1,707 1,268 860 657
A B K A Interest cost 550 367 225 222
TEE K Actuarial losses 6,312 5,922 3,095 2,865
218 Benefits paid (932) — (932) —
E 5 =% Exchange differences (944) 1,287 (485) 785
REEH At end of the
reporting period 33,730 27,037 18,301 15,538
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29.ETR/ANERE #&)

RERAME (&)

29. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Defined benefit plans (Continued)

RINNEERERPOHRAXL : Total amount of expense recognised in the consolidated income
statement:
E
Group
2011 2010
FET FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
NEE R Current service cost 1,707 1,268
BB A Interest cost 550 367
REFRINZFREBLK  Net actuarial losses recognised
during the year 1,071 534
LErE D Under-provided — (805)
RFEEFHXZ Net expense for the year included in
(BEBETHRER) administrative expenses 3,328 1,364
ABRBNEEZ/BRER : The principal assumptions used for accounting purposes were:
AEBRAAT
Group and Company
2011 2010
% %
iR & Discount rate 1.75 2.00
T8 B %7 B A 13 Expected rate of salary increases 10.00 10.00
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29. BEIR@AEE #) 29. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
REBFGE (&) Defined benefit plans (Continued)
RERBEFEZ2ENAT : Historical information:

AEE
Group
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

FET FTETL  TET  TXTL FET
US$'000 | US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000

S E 1@ A Present value of the defined
EERE benefit obligations 33,730 27,037 18,193 10,255 7,718
TEAE Experience adjustments arising
2R on plan liabilities 5,093 (1,433) (903) 1,815 735
VNN
Company
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
FET FET FET FET FET
Uss’000 | US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$000
FLE 1R A Present value of the defined
HEERME benefit obligations 18,301 15,538 11,009 6,538 5,342
FEIEE Experience adjustments arising
Z#EERFE  on plan liabilities 2,458 (1,091) (485) 927 551
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30. FEAE B 1A 30. DEFERRED TAXATION
REBFEEHREZFHNAT : The movement for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax
position was as follows:
K&
Group
2011 2010
DT FETT
USs$'000 Us$'000
R4 A1) At beginning of year 53,714 55,400
FAGIH) A WKEERA  Charge (credit) to consolidated
income statement 25,202 (1,686)
REER At end of the reporting period 78,916 53,714
REER  ERRBZELEHBEER Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
BEHN reporting period represent the followings:
REHE
Group
2011 2010
BE a& BE a81E
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
FET FETT FZETT FZETT
Us$°000 Us$°000 Us$'000 Us$'000
MR B ITE Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (36,544) — (27,637)
RS I & Decelerated depreciation
allowance 296 — 282 —
VERIEN SRS Impairment losses 10,624 — 14,621 —
REGBREZ Un-invoiced accrual 32,088 — 25,797 —
TEiIRE A
AR Withholding tax — (92,649) — (68,885)
H At Others 9,168 (1,899) 9,751 (7,643)
RIETIIEE = (B &) Deferred tax assets
(liabilities) 52,176 (131,092) 50,451 (104,165)

\ 154

AedizpanRad

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



BIEDERBRE - INRIEEBRAL
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BIRB10%M T BB TBIET o &
FHER2008F 1A 1HEERR » EHA
R2007F12831BE KRl 5
FEFE o i B BT Bz SN 4R B &
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AEAREKRE AEBERAREA
10% ° AEBBRIEEHBENE R A
7200745 1& BRER L T8 BA7E AT R % 2Kk
HR Y 5 R FIE B 50 % M &t 4R A8
HIREERIEE F o

E 5 F 8250 % 122007 5 14 BRER L 78 HA
fE 7] B 2R RMESBE 2 FI & E 5
EBDE - WRBZEINERL - ZF
R BB A B R BB S 2 R BL FE A
JEIR FiFE &t £ 92,649,000 7T (2010
F : 68,885,000 ) - EER A B
AIARLEZERDEMBEBIESHEH
MBARzEEES WA RiGK
FETESED o B LI 48 1F S RN
T -

REBIW AR ERELEFIEE ERNT
7% &5 18 86,274,000% 7T (20104 :
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EBRINHZSEEEREEC B RRAF
MezBBKz - BB ERESP
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9,546,000% 7T (20104 : 9,109,000
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2013+ 2014 - 2015 2016% £ »
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 10%
and deferred tax liability is only provided on 50% of post-2007
earnings that are expected to be distributable in the
foreseeable future.

The remaining 50% of post-2007 earnings that are not
expected to be distributable in the foreseeable future would be
subject to additional taxation if they are distributed. The
estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution of these
unremitted retained earnings of these PRC subsidiaries were
approximately of US$92,649,000 (2010: US$68,885,000). In
the opinion of the directors, these retained earnings, at the
present time, are required for financing the continuing
operations of the PRC subsidiaries and no distribution would be
made in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, no provisions for
additional deferred taxation have been made.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses of US$86,274,000 (2010: US$48,861,000), which
can be carried forward for five years from the year in which the
losses arose for offsetting against future taxable income. Losses
amounting to US$10,301,000 (20710: US$9,986,000),
US$6,826,000 (2070: US$6,869,000), US$9,546,000 (2010:
US$9,109,000), US$11,508,000 (2070: US$11,688,000) and
US$48,093,000 (2070: US$Nil) will expire in 2012, 2013, 2014,
2015 and 2016 respectively.

The Company does not have unrecognised deferred tax
liabilities at the end of reporting period.
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31. B RN 31. TRADE PAYABLES
KEE PN/
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

FET TETT FET FET
Us$°000 US$°000 Us$°000 US$'000

FE A BR R Trade payables
F=F Due to third parties 892,788 989,113 2,154 2,126
BEE AT Due to related parties 81,325 94,800 — —
974,113 1,083,913 2,154 2,126
FET B B A T 2 BT BR R A IR The trade payables due to related parties are unsecured,
A RERMBIOKERE - interest-free and with credit period of 90 days.
EAERFRREERREZARREZE The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date
Ak UM at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
rEME KA F
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET FET FER FET
USs$’000 Us$’000 US$°000 Us$:000
0-90H 0 — 90 days 915,284 1,066,760 2,152 2,118
908 N E Over 90 days 58,829 17,153 2 8
974,113 1,083,913 2,154 2,126
JERTBR A T3 B ¥ FIME The trade payables are denominated in the following
currencies:
rEE AT
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
F =T FET F =T FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$°000 Us$'000
AR RMB 971,959 1,081,787 — —
e NTD 2,154 2,126 2,154 2,126
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32. OTHER PAYABLES

K& P NN
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FETT FZETT FETT FETT
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
Al iR & Deposits received in
advance 177,288 116,965 — 9,833
By 58K Accruals for transportation,
EEERCER promoting and
advertising expenses 221,937 173,268 — —
JEN T & KEFIE  Salaries and welfare
payables 84,887 82,533 — —
FEAS BB 3K Payables for purchase of
equipments 60,360 42,036 — —
HiERE R Other accruals 76,225 89,112 12,143 687
FES B B A L Due to a related party 707 15,257 707 15,257
Hh, Others 39,591 53,078 137 45
660,995 572,249 12,987 25,822

FEN A BB A T B EL A B (9 SR SR K
2B RRERER -

2011 Annual Report 4§

The other payable due to a related party is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.
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B.REXBHERS 33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2011 2010
=T FZETT
Us$°000 Us$'000
BR 5 B A Profit before taxation 662,976 746,774
FEER Interest expenses 9,372 6,511
2 WA Interest income (38,564) (21,479)
A F U A Dividend income (1,573) =
e Depreciation 317,544 275,054
THEEREIEAER Unfunded employee benefit
obligations paid (932) —
T A EE 2 B Amortisation on prepaid lease payments 3,697 2,544
B EE 2 #H Amortisation on intangible assets — 1,989
HEME  BHER (Gain) Loss on disposal of property,
T (W) BE plant and equipment (74) 8,083
HE—RHE2EHE 2N E2AR Gain on disposal of a non wholly-owned
B — K& AR (AR subsidiary and an associate
PEAFEREEE) ZWE  previously classified as held for sale (39,175) —
MmE - BERZEREBE Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 4,169 35,520
ME - R RERE Reversal of impairment loss on
A EEEEE property, plant and equipment (3,500) —
EREEREEBR Impairment loss on intangible assets — 4,966
BARBEVNRREESERE Fair value change in financial assets
NeEMEEARBZE at fair value through profit or loss 135 766
i AN Share of results of associates — (9,978)
BIEHEHE QA Gain on discontinuation of equity
A& accounting for an associate — (68,653)
EXEH s w8 Effect on exchange rate changes 7,677 2,438
RII A 5 4 B RR 1 Recognition of equity-settled
X2 HE share-based payment 11,346 5,020
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WB.REXBFRBRE (8 33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)
2011 2010
FET FZETT
Us$°000 Us$'000
AR R A BN AR R 2 BN Increase in trade payables due to
a former associate — 56,933
FEZ®ED (Em) Decrease (Increase) in inventories 12,503 (93,123)
JE UG BR SRz 120 Increase in trade receivables (21,017) (9,828)
T8 5038 2 H A e K IE Increase in prepayments and
23 other receivables (68,994) (68,513)
PR 2 CR ) Em (Decrease) Increase in trade payables (163,205) 334,905
H At & FRIE 2 5 Increase in other payables 69,583 143,356
EFPEMKIEZ (D) Em (Decrease) Increase in advance
payments from customers (24,723) 43,012
H b 3F 7 B FE 4 ZX 3B 2 s 4> Decrease in other non-current payables (791) (792)
FEHHE TRF Increase in present value of unfunded
BERE 2 employee benefit obligations 2,899 720
RELEFBESE Cash generated from operations 739,353 1,396,225
/. EHERMBALZEARS 34. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BRNARR B EMENRE RS R
BN LT AKEEBRRE AL
ETZEARSIME - WERHTIR
AEBZBERBHHET -

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered into

the following material related party transactions in the ordinary

course of the Group’s business.
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M. EEEBMALTZEARS (

] 34. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
2011 2010
Kt at E FET
Note Us$’000 US$000
(a) BABMATZRS (a) Related party transactions
MTHABHEEER : Sales of goods to:
RKRAIZEERE Companies controlled by a
ks A NG substantial shareholder of
the Company (i) 6,774 4,833
BRI ATRBEE R : Purchases of goods from:
A B & A A A former associate 219,938 405,395
RIEZERA A former non-wholly owned
Al 1N /NG subsidiary 15,609 _
NN - o= e Rk A company jointly controlled
AN by the Company’s directors (i) 15,437 —
ARBZEER A group of companies jointly
HR B 2[R 2 controlled by the Company’s
Z — 487 directors and their dependent (i) 205,459 —
AKRABETFLHBERZ Holding companies of a
2l /N minority shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Company (i) 3,878 3,495
BTRHATEHE—FR Proceed from the disposal of
(2EMBRARIIR —R a non-wholly owned
BeENT (LA 8EA subsidiary and an associate
BIEHEEEZRS previously classified as
assets held for sale from:
NN - === = b | A company jointly controlled by
/N the Company’s directors (i) 88,500 9,833
BT ATHEYZE Proceeds from disposal of
HERRER T property, plant and
HOREZRE equipment and prepaid
lease payments to:
RKRBIZEER A group of companies jointly
H B KR controlled by the Company’s
< —#RF directors and their dependent (i) 9,973 —
RARIZEERE A company controlled by a
e /N substantial shareholder
of the Company (i) 6,479 _
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

(%) 34. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
A Note (i) Those related party transactions also constitute
=z 5 connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.
2011 2010
Kt &t FETT FET
Note USs$’000 Us$'000
(b) B B 4 (b) Related party balances
EAEBEBEALZERMR Trade payables due to related
parties:
KRR 2 ES KRS A company jointly controlled by
/NG the Company’s directors 3,512 =
RAFICEERERE A group of companies jointly
HREAEH 2 —4HRF controlled by the Company’s
directors and their dependent 73,099 90,378
AR A) 2 E B R ZE S A company controlled by a
/N substantial shareholder of
the Company 4,714 4,422
81,325 94,800
EREEBA L Other payables due to
ZHMERK : related parties:
RRARIZEERERE A group of companies jointly
HRAEH 2 —4EHRF controlled by the Company’s
directors and their dependent 707 15,257
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M EBERABMALZEAR S (#) 34. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c) BREBAEZHE (c) Key management personnel remuneration:
AEBRBESEABEZHS (8 Remuneration for key management personnel of the
FEW 10 ERMAA T ESES Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
NrzRERRAEGETEEHFEEX and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
NZHBE)IT - note 10, is as follows:

2011 2010
FETT TET
US$’000 USs$'000

EEEe Directors’ fees 630 622

FekHMmME Salaries and other emoluments 3,600 2,998

VAR 7 2 1+ 2 K38 Share-based payments 7,009 3,104

14T Discretionary bonuses 1,213 1,071

RKRIE 5 8 3R Retirement scheme contribution 13 11

12,465 7,806
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3. EAXREE

AEEEREANBRRREAEE
BEAFF B E - Wi AR M R
REMASEEREERERES -

35. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

AEBEEEREEELXREZEER
(BHREREER)  BEEELEMNE
BEhZEREAFEE GTEERERH
BRREMASEEY (EREARF K
REGREDZLEE  INGEAERE
BRARE - REHEA - FEYEH

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the
basis of net debt (interest bearing borrowings net of cash and
cash equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners
of the Company as disclosed in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at the end

BERZELENT : of the reporting period were as follows:
RE AT
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
ES FETT =TT FZET
US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$'000
BEERBE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,250,077 634,135 410,000 220,000
B RER Less: Cash and cash
REEBY equivalents (600,052) (893,340) (6,396) (60,196)
FEEGS) Net debt (cash) 650,025 (259,205) 403,604 159,804
RARREE(RHELZ Total equity 2,099,745 | 1,821,258 305,364 378,562
BEEENX Gearing ratio 30.96% -14.23% 132.17% 42.21%
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance and makes adjustments to capital structure
according to changes in economic conditions for achieving its
objectives through payment of dividends, share repurchase and
issue of new debt. Changing of borrowing rate in the market,
future capital expenditures and investment opportunities are
taken into consideration.

During 2011, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2010, was aimed at maintaining the net debt approximately to
nil balance. The increase in the gearing ratio during 2011 was
resulted primarily from increase in bank borrowings for
financing the Group’s capital expenditures during the year.

Some of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to financial
covenants requirements imposed by certain banks.
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The Group’s financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and price risk.
The Board of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies
on its risks management and limits the Group’s exposure to
these risks to a minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in
the PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in
RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
borrowings, available-for-sales financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government. The Group did not have significant
exposure to foreign exchange risk and has not hedged its
foreign exchange risk because the subsidiaries of the Group
mainly earn their profits in RMB and the value of RMB has been
appreciating against US$ in recent past years.

Details of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, bank
balances, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in US$, RMB, NTD, EUR and JPY as at 31
December 2011 and 2010 are set out in notes 18, 19, 24, 28
and 31 respectively.
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Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of
RMB/US$, RMB/NTD, RMB/EUR and RMB/JPY had strengthened/
weakened by 5%, 9%, 8% and 1% respectively with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and
retained profits would have been US$50,316,000 (2070:
US$23,372,000) higher/lower, other comprehensive income
would have been US$162,894,000 (2070: US$129,623,000)
higher/lower and exchange translation reserve would have been
US$123,097,000 (2010: US$95,143,000) higher/lower.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group’s policy is to
manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and floating rate
debts. The Group has not hedged its cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk. The Group’s strategy is to maintain an
appropriate proportion between borrowings at fixed interest
rates and floating interest rates, in consideration of economic
atmosphere and the strategies of the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 10
(2010: 10) basis points higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained
profits would decrease/increase by US$1,200,000 (2070:
US$574,000).
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Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalent, trade and other receivables.
Substantially all of the Group’s and the Company’s pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in
the creditworthy global financial institutions and state-
controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which management
consider they are without significant credit risk.

The majority of the Group’s sales are conducted on a cash
basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that sales
of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade on
credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject
to periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these receivables. The credit quality
of the counterparties is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. Individual
credit limits are set based on the assessment of the credit
quality. Given the repayment history, the directors are of the
opinion that the risk of default by these counterparties is not
significant. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as 25% (2010: 20%) of the total
amounts of the prepayments and other receivables was due
from the five largest counterparties.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had a
concentration of credit risk as 97% (2010: 95%) of the total
amounts due from subsidiaries was due from the five largest
subsidiaries.
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities to the Group. Also, the Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements,
in particular relating to capital expenditure and repayments of
debts. At the end of the reporting period, the Board of
Directors expected that the Group had no significant liquidity
risk in the near future. Details of the preparation of financial
statements on a going concern basis are set out in note 2.
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6. 2EMEREE (£ 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
RBESRR (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AEBZeRABBEREEHEZES 0T The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the
BBz THRZEEOREARESR end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted
EI|RIAT - payments are summarised below:
rEE
Group
(k3>

BE2ER 2L LB
1ERAE More than EHER

BREREN 1year More than
Within 1 but less 2 years but
year or than less than &5t
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
TET T TET T

Uss‘000 Uss‘000 Us$°000 Uss‘o0o

720115 12H31H At 31 December 2011

FE A BR 5K Trade payables 974,113 — — 974,113

H & < 5RI8 Other payables 660,995 — — 660,995
BEERBE Interest-bearing

borrowings 709,611 112,901 450,160 1,272,672

2,344,719 112,901 450,160 2,907,780

M2010512H31H At 31 December 2010

& A5 BR 5K Trade payables 1,083,913 — — 1,083,913
Hh FE I 5RIB Other payables 571,458 — — 571,458
BEERBE Interest-bearing borrowings 461,894 94,108 86,419 642,421
HibIEREEA FIE Other non-current payables 791 791 — 1,582

2,118,056 94,899 86,419 2,299,374
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

RBELRER (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
PN
Company
1 E
BE2FR 260 {8
12K More than ESFER
REREN 1 year More than
Within 1 but less 2 years but
year or than less than &5t
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
FET FET FET FET
Us$000 Us$’000 Us$‘000 Us$’000
M2011%12831H At 31 December 2011
FET MY B A B R IA Due to subsidiaries 50,513 — — 50,513
FE AT BR 5K Trade payables 2,154 — — 2,154
H i 1B Other payables 12,280 — — 12,280
FES B BB A L Amount due to
related parties 707 — — 707
BEEEE Interest-bearing
borrowings 205,935 35,389 175,663 416,987
271,589 35,389 175,663 482,641
7201026128 31H At 31 December 2010
FERTMT B A B IA Due to subsidiaries 99,078 — — 99,078
J& 1+t BR 3K Trade payables 2,126 — — 2,126
H i fE 7B Other payables 25,822 — — 25,822
BEEEE Interest-bearing
borrowings 159,104 40,623 25,263 224,990
286,130 40,623 25,263 352,016

Hetizanad
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

b NN
Company
1 E
BE2ER 2L E{B
1£ K5 More than E5ER

REREN 1 year More than
Within 1 but less 2 years but
year or than less than &%
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
EY EY EY EY

Uss‘000 Uss’000 Uss‘000 Uss‘000

ERH2HMBIEMR  Financial guarantees

issued:
BE#EH RS Maximum amounted
B BUE R guaranteed

720115128318

At 31 December 2011 105,000 — — 105,000

M2010%F12H31H

At 31 December 2010

68,758 — — 68,758

x

HER  ARRAETWEZEW
BRAZEEERELVBER &
% /A 150,000,0003% jT (20104 :
161,057,000 ) - EER BB B
BERAARQAREZEEE - AQF]
REZERARSBERZEZEMBA
ABM R - ©% 105,000,000
% 7T (20104 : 68,758,000% 7T) °

ERNBEEETASNEBEE &
ERREAEEVRERZOAEE
WEAHBERTALT - #ULTORER
IR EERMBMAERA -

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has issued
financial guarantees in respect of credit facilities to two wholly-
owned subsidiaries of US$150,000,000 (2010:
US$161,057,000). The directors do not consider it is probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the end
of the reporting period under the guarantees issued is the
facility drawn down by the subsidiaries of US$105,000,000
(2010: US$68,758,000).

Due to the related party nature of the instruments, the
directors considered it not meaningful and practicable to
estimate the fair values of the financial guarantees and
therefore they have not been recognised in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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36. 2RAKRREE 4

JTOR

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

AREE Fair value
(a) AAREBERENERIA (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

TREVREER  R(EAEMY The following table presents the carrying value of financial

BRELADFTR [T A - instruments measured at fair value at the end of the

KEIMEEN AR BESZRE reporting period across the three levels of the fair value

ERM=EFHK+ - LAREEE hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:

ENEHMTAZRBEE ' 88 Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instrument

WOHNERMITAZAREBESR categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input

HLERBANKESER - 5H that is significant to that fair value measurement. The levels

BAHARBEIZEHEEE - are defined as follows:

ERAERFBOT -

- BIR(ZEER)  FAAE — Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
EEMZREReR T AN quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
WE(RKAB)GFERIRE identical financial instrument
(]

— F2% MAEERTmST R - Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
PeBMITAENKRE =FME active markets for similar financial instruments, or
BEZPALEEIHEEER using valuation techniques in which all significant
EEMmEHEEBENHER inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
fii - stEAREE market data

— ER(HZEZER) - MAME - Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
o] & 2 8 A N0 3F B 5O 7] # 52 valuation techniques in which any significant input is
MGHBENHERNTER not based on observable market data
nEE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

AR
Group
2011 2010
N #5812 #513 a3 el f52 RE13 st
level 1 Level2  Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
fir TEn  TEn  TEn | TEr TEr TEr TER
USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000 | US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000
AtHE BREE  Avallable-forsale
-WEBIS EfFZ - Equity securities, listed outside
kAZHTE Hong Kong 92,518 - — 02518 | 109,251 - — 109,251
-LEREES - Private investment funds - - 8,496 8,496 — — _ _
EARREEER Financial assets at fair value
BREZHBEEE through profit or loss
-REASNETZ - Equity securities, listed outside
RAZAME Hong Kong 551 - - 551 762 - - 762
-EnEKES - US$ currency fund — 9 . 9 _ 9 _ 9
93,069 9 8,496 101,574 | 110,013 9 — 110,022
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6. 2EMEREE (£ 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
DNREE (&) Fair value (Continued)
(a) LAREBERENESRMIE (&) (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)
ART
Company
2011 2010
LN @El2 &AB @t | R B32  BES )
Level1  Level2  Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

. TEr FEx fXn | TAr AT TAT TAR
USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000 | USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USK'000

ARLEZHBEE  Available-forsale
~RABMIMZET - Equity securities, listed outside
RAEHTE Hong Kong 55,095 - - 55005 | 73937 - - B
-BREES - Private investment funds - - 8,496 8,496 = = - -
BAABEERR Financial assets at fair value
RREHBARE through profit or loss
~REBMINZET - Eauity securities, listed outside

AaEHmE Hong Kong 551 - - 551 762 = = 762
-EnEEES - US$ currency fund - 9 - 9 = 9 = 9
55,646 9 849% 64151 | 74699 9 — 74708
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Fair value (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

During the year ended 2011 and 2010, there were no
transfers between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2 and
3 fair value

no transfers into and out of Level

measurements.

The movement in assets measured at fair value level based
on level 3 for the year ended 31 December 2011 are shown

as follows:
IEREES
Private
investment
funds
Us$'000
RERREXEHR Total purchases during the reporting period and
BB at the end of the reporting period 8,496
REEBREZEE Total gains or losses for the period included in profit

FFABEMEEARS

or loss for assets held at the end of the reporting period

FEMABESRENAREE
EREBEALABEESHRENDAIN
AREE - MATREER (T
iy o HBIEIEA B R M I5ERK K
HhERZBE WESKEZIEE
MARMEEFHEREHRI%
£29% ' AR ARMFEHET
BERABMS 2 TR ERAE
H12.9%E24.7% » HEARFEE

HAfE-

The fair values of the unlisted private investment funds are
valued based on the fair values of the companies invested
by the private funds which are estimated using price/
earnings (P/E) multiple model. It includes assumptions that
are not supported by observable market prices or rates. In
determining the fair value, the average annual growth rates
of unquoted companies invested by the funds ranging from
9% to 29%, average P/E ratios of comparable companies
and median P/E ratios of the corresponding industries
ranging from 12.9% to 24.7% are used.
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[MREE B

(b) UAREEUIIIENSEHT A
DAREE

EERAAEERAAF &I
B 7 BRI 1B DAPK 7N 35 8 85 Bk A 7
Bk - BE 20114 K 20105124
SMHZARBEITESAER -

EkER

$$l&$ ARBZ A BRRAR

BRIz B ESRMEEREZAR
@ﬂ%m&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁ'
AEEBUAZEREREAR - BLA
SERARRRALAHEE ZBRER
BfME  EAAEDZ2ETSREM
BE - AKERARBZIEFLTRE
RFERRIEIREZM - HRATD
RIBFAKEMEEFRIAREREEHN
REIREE ST 8| 2 B MEE B T BRY
fi

FRED T IIRE ETRERE R
EoREERRR - REER - KR
HihBEBRXTET - ZHEE2RK”T
& B3 sk R 4 10% (2010 -
10%) » NEB 2 RFE &N RRE
A EEFIEERRE 2 #8)imig
b0 8 8 4> 55,0003 JT (20104 :
76,000%7T) - HEEHERBEE
EafthEcmEEE AR BECE
B M & A0 sk B 2 9,251,000 T
(20104 : 10,925,000% 7T ) ° ZIKE
EerERRREEREREERR
Ft i VB AR FE 0 o
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Fair value (Continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments carried at
cost or amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

Price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price risks
arising from investments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets at fair value and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. For the Group’s and the Company’'s equity
securities investments that are publicly traded, the fair value is
determined with reference to quoted market prices. The
Group's and the Company’s unlisted investments are held for
long-term strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at
least annually based on the information available to the Group,
together with an assessment of their relevance to the Group’s
long-term strategic plans.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure of the listed equity securities to equity price risk. At
the end of the reporting period, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% (2010: 10%) in the relevant stock market
index as applicable, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit for the year
and retained profits by US$55,000 (2070: US$76,000) due to
change in the fair value of investments held-for-trading, and
would have increased/decreased the Group’s investment
valuation reserves by US$9,251,000 (2070: US$10,925,000) as
a result of changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets. The Group will monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need rise.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
reasonably possible changes in the stock market index had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at that
date. It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s listed
investments would change in accordance with the historical
correlation with the relevant stock market index that none of
the Group’s available-for-sale investments at fair value would be
considered impaired as a result of a reasonably possible
decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all other
variables remain constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
the relevant stock market index over the period until the next
annual end of the reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2010.
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37. & E 37. COMMITMENTS

() BARZHEARE (a) Capital expenditure commitments

RE
Group
2011 2010
FETT FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
BET 4B KRB Contracted but not provided for 290,319 260,662
(o) BERNEE (b) Commitments under operating leases

REEH  RETAREE LS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

L AEBRRHERENK
BEH AT -

operating leases, which are payable as follows:

RE

Group
2011 2010
FETT FETT
Us$’000 Us$'000
1€ X Within one year 26,001 14,939

RE2EEZE5FEEim  In the second to fifth
(BEER2F) years inclusive 41,112 21,384
5 DA 18 After five years 26,183 14,996
93,296 51,319
i \ 178 HattraRag
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

On 4 November 2011, the Company and PepsiCo Inc.
("“PepsiCo”) entered into the Contribution Agreement, the
Commercial Agreements and the agreements for their strategic
alliance in the beverage business in the PRC (the “Strategic
Alliance Arrangements”) that PepsiCo’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, Far East Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited (“FEB”), has
agreed to contribute its entire interest in PepsiCo’s non-
alcoholic beverage bottling businesses in the PRC to Tingyi-
Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd. (“TAB”), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, in exchange for a 9.5%
direct interest in Master Kong Beverage (BVI) Co. Ltd. (“"MKB"),
which is a holding company of the Group’s beverage business
in the PRC. As a consequence, FEB will hold 5% indirect equity
interest in TAB and FEB will be granted an option to increase its
indirect interest in TAB to 20% on a fully diluted basis, details
of this business combination are set out in the Circular of the
Company dated 20 January 2012. At the end of the reporting
period, the Strategic Alliance Arrangements have not been
completed and are subject to the fulfillment of conditions.

On 17 February 2012, the Strategic Alliance Arrangements have
been approved by the shareholders of the Company. As of 21
March 2012, the date of these financial statements, the closing
of the Strategic Alliance Arrangements is still pending for the
outcome of the regulatory approval in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Strategic Alliance Arrangements, upon the
closing of the Strategic Alliance Arrangements, MKB and TAB
will issue their respective new shares which will constitute a
deemed disposal of 9.5% equity interest in MKB as well as a
deemed disposal of 2.5% equity interest in TAB; and the
adjusted aggregate book value of PepsiCo’s non-alcoholic
beverage bottling business in the PRC to be acquired by TAB
will be amounted to US$600 million. As the Strategic Alliance
Arrangements has not been completed and the initial
accounting for the transaction is incomplete, it is not
practicable to reliably estimate its financial effect.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

FEMBARIKRIIMAT Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
AL aMExR/
=E S BETRAE FE 1k
Place of Registered g 15401
2% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TDERK
Name operation share capital ownership interest ~ Principal activity
E# 8 &
Directly Indirectly
FEETERMBVIARAT RERLHES 50,000 @A FARUSST 100% — REBK
Master Kong Instant British Virgin 50,000 ordinary shares Investment holding
Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. Islands (“BVI") at US$1 each/US$1
RRRHRMBERAA i US$72,000,000 — 100% HERHENRE
(RIAREEHERRmBRAR) PRC Manufacture and sale
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
(formerly known as Tianjin
Tingyi International Food Co., Ltd.)
ENEZREMBRAA e US$31,000,000 — 100% HERHEEHFER
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
*HMBEERmAERARF i US$131,500,000 / — 100% HERHEEFFE
Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$92,700,000 Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
*FREE (M) T ERRERAA g US$20,000,000 — 100% RERHENRE
Master Kong (Hangzhou) PRC Manufacture and sale
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
EERGZAMABRAA & US$22,000,000 — 100% HEREEIFE
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
ELEGZAEMAERAR i US$17,000,000 — 100% SERHEEFEE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
RERGRMARAA HE US$17,800,000 — 100% HERHEENEE
Wuhan Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

\ 180

Hetizanad
TINGY! (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

of instant noodles



BR B B &

Notes to the Financial Statements

HZ201MF12A31BLEFE
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30. T EHEA ()
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Conti

S/ amER/
EXE ERTRA 1k
Place of Registered %t
% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# &
Directly Indirectly
AZE&RmERDA g US$17,000,000 — 100% HERHEENRE
Xian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
EERERMARAA g US$5,000,000 — 100% HERHENRE
Qingdao Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
RBERERBARAF E US$11,200,000 —  100% RERHESEE
Harbin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
BREGZREMBERAR e US$4,500,000 — 100% HERHEEHFEE
Fujian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
*HERGERMARAA g US$3,000,000 — 100% HERHEEHFEE
Xinjiang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
*EREHERMARAA e US$14,000,000 — 100% HERHEEHFER
Nanling Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
RERMBRARHERAR =) 50,000,000 &M 100% — BEREESFE
Master Kong (Taiwan) Taiwan FHRNT$10 Manufacture and sale
Foods Co., Ltd. * 50,000,000 ordinary of instant noodles
shares of NT$10 each /
NT$500,000,000
*KBEERMAERAT hE US$17,000,000 — 100% HERHEEIFEE
Chengdu Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
AL -RERMARAF E RMB187,500,000 —  100% HERBESEE
Hebei Yi Wan Xiang Foods Co., Ltd. ¥  PRC Manufacture and sale

of instant noodles
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont

AL/ gEMEx/
EEMY BRTRA 15
Place of Registered % L
% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest  Principal activity
E# %
Directly Indirectly
ERERRMERA i US$3,000,000 — 100% HERHEENRE
Master Kong (Kunmlng) PRC Manufacture and sale
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
“REECES) TERRERAA g US$6,000,000 — 100% RERHEHEE
Master Kong (Shenyang) PRC Manufacture and sale
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
FRHELREARE (FE)ERART $H US$227,500,000/ — 100% REHEK
(RIAERMEFERMIRE (RE) PRC US$102,000,000 Investment holding
BRAF)
Master Kong Instant Noodle
Investment (China) Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Master
Kong Instant Foods
Investment (China) Co., Ltd.)
ERBMEZRMARLA HhE US$5,000,000 — 100% HERHEFEHE
Huaian Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and sale
of instant noodles
*BERRZRRERAF e US$5,000,000 — 100% RERHEHEHE
Meishan Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and sale
of instant noodles
EARRZEMARLA i US$5,000,000 — 100% HERHEHEH
Changsha Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. #*  PRC Manufacturing and sale
of instant noodles
*BNERZRMERAT le US$5,000,000 — 100% HERHENRE
Zhengzhou Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC Manufacturing and sale
of instant noodles
“WHERZRRERAA hE US$5,000,000 — 100% HERHEHEHE
Lanzhou Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and sale
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Place of

amex/
ERTRA
Registered

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Conti

33
I e

% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
EE ik
Directly Indirectly
*ERME(EE) FERMER AR i US$5,000,000 — 100% HERHFELFER
Master Kong (Chongging) PRC Manufacturing and sale
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
*HEEMZRmBRA R & US$5,000,000 - 100% HERHFEHFEA
Xianyang Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and sale
of instant noodles
FHEEMEZRMEBRAR i US$3,000,000 = 100% HERHEEHFEM
Xinjiang Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and sale
of instant noodles
*ALBRREZEmARAR B US$5,000,000 — 100% HEREEHER
Hebei Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and sale
of instant noodles
*RRERRERmARATF Y US$3,000,000 — 100% HERHBELFEM
Harbin Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacturing and sale
of instant noodles
FEEEMEZRMBRAR i US$5,000,000 - 100% HERHFELFER
Jinan Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and sale
of instant noodles
FRERRLZEmARAR H US$5,000,000 - 100% HEREEHER
Dongguan Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Manufacturing and sale
of instant noodles
AR B BVIVER A H] RERLEHE  50,000% BB ERKUSH 100% — RE#ER
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI 50,000 ordinary Investment holding
shares at US$1
each/US$1
ROBEAERmRE (FE)ERAR US$85,400,000/ - 100% HELER
Master Kong Instant Foods PRC US$4,500,000 Investment holding

Investment (China) Co., Ltd.
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont

AL/ gEMEx/
X BRITRA 1k
Place of Registered % L
% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest  Principal activity
E# &
Directly Indirectly
REEARMBERAA le US$6,000,000 — 50% HEREERHER
Tianjin Kameda Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of rice crackers
REREERMBRAA hE US$37,000,000 — 100% HERHERHER
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of bakery products
ENEERmERAA HE US$22,000,000  100% — HERHERHER
Guangzhou Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of bakery products
MNEEERBERAA HE US$18,400,000 — 100% SERHERHER
Hangzhou Ting Yuan Food Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of bakery products
FEER@mEBVIER A RBEZHS 50,000%BRERUSI 100% — REBR
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI 50,000 ordinary Investment holding
shares of US$1
each/US$50,000
FEMERRERER A MERS 5,000,000 i i —  50.01% REER
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Cayman Islands FH%US$0.01 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. 5,000,000 ordinary
shares of US$0.01
each/US$10,001
*RERERMARAA i US$60,840,000 —  50.01% HEREEHE
Tianjin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
EMNERRMERAA i US$20,000,000 —  50.01% HEREEHE
Guangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Conti
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Place of

HZE2011F12A31BILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

amex/
ERTRA
Registered

33
I e

-

% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# &
Directly Indirectly
*RAVE (BM) KA FRA A Gl US$14,500,000 —  5001% RERHEERR
Master Kong (Guangzhou) PRC Manufacture and sale
Beverage Co., Ltd. of beverages
*MMNERRMBRAA hE US$38,100,000 —  5001% BERHEERSD
Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*FREDE (M) KmBRADA g US$28,350,000 —  50.01% BERHEERD
Master Kong (Hangzhou) PRC Manufacture and sale
Beverage Co., Ltd. of beverages
ARBERMAERAT e US$5,000,000 —  50.01% BEREERD
Xi'an Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*RERERMERAT e US$51,000,000 / —  50.01% BERHEERD
Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$35,000,000 Manufacture and sale
of beverages
EERZRMBRAA hE US$24,000,000 —  50.01% HERHERR
Chongging Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*ERBERRMBRAA e US$15,000,000 —  50.01% BERHEERD
Qingdao Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BREZARMAERAR hE US$13,700,000 —  50.01% BERHEERR
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*REARRRRRAR AT E US$33,000,000 / —  50.01% BEREERG
Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. # PRC US$22,600,000 Manufacture and sale
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont

EmAL
RS

Place of

dmex,/
BRTRA
Registered

Efh
i 3407

% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest  Principal activity
E# &
Directly Indirectly
“HERRRMAERA HE US$10,000,000 —  5001% BERHERD
Xinjiang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*BRBERRMBRAA e US$12,000,000 —  5001% BERHEERD
Kunming Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*HMNERRMmBRRA i US$24,000,000 —  50.01% BHERHEEHE
Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*HMNERRMBRAA HE US$16,000,000 —  50.01% HERHEHRE
Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* A OB KmBRDA HE US$41,000,000 / —  5001% BERHEERE
Master Kong (Shenyang) PRC US$37,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Beverage Co., Ltd. of beverages
*EEE(AR) KmER AT i US$48,500,000 —  50.01% RERHEHE
Master Kong (Xi'an) PRC Manufacture and sale
Beverage Co., Ltd. of beverages
* EEE(RR) RRER AR th B US$30,500,000 —  5001% BERHEERE
Master Kong (Tianjin) PRC Manufacture and sale
Beverage Co., Ltd. of beverages
*ERBEEREMARAA i US$5,000,000 —  5001% HERHEEHE
Nanjing Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*EEMEEN) RBUKRERAT  HE US$5,000,000 —  50.01% RERHEHAE
Master Kong (Jilin) The Changbai PRC Manufacture and sale

Mountain Beverage Co., Ltd.
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Conti
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Place of

HZE2011F12A31BILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

amex/
ERTRA
Registered

33
I e

% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# &
Directly Indirectly
*BMNERRMBRAA HE US$36,500,000 / —  5001% REREERM
Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$30,400,000 Manufacture and sale
of beverages
“REE (M) TERRBRBERAE  HE US$12,000,000 / —  50.01% HARREKLE
Master Kong (Hangzhou) PRC US$1,800,029 Not yet commenced
Qiandaohu Beverages Co., Ltd. # business
*EMNERRmBRAA g US$59,300,000 —  5001% BERHEERD
Guangzhou Tingjin PRC Manufacture and sale
Beverage Co., Ltd. of beverages
*RERERMBERAT hE US$12,000,000 —  50.01% BERHEERD
Tianjin Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*FEE (KE) KmARAF i US$10,500,000 —  50.01% BERHEERD
Master Kong (Dalian) PRC Manufacture and sale
Beverage Co., Ltd. of beverages
“KBERRMERAF g US$20,500,000 —  50.01% HERHERM
Chengdu Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*EEE(SEAE) RmBRAA hE US$12,000,000 —  5001% BERHEERSD
Master Kong (Wulumugji) PRC Manufacture and sale
Beverage Co., Ltd. * of beverages
*HERERMARATF g US$14,000,000 / —  50.01% RERHEERD
Nanchang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$13,200,000 Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*ERBERRmARRAA hE US$2,110,000 —  50.01% BERHEERD
Yuncheng Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont

AL/ gEMEx/
X BRITRA 1k
Place of Registered % L
% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest  Principal activity
E# &
Directly Indirectly
EEERRRRERAT hE US$2,110,000 / —  5001% BERHERD
Zhumadian Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd.  PRC US$1,695,000 Manufacture and sale
of beverages
FHIBEERmARAT hE US$2,600,000 —  5001% HERHEERSD
Zhanjiang Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*RERREMBRAA g US$4,000,000 / —  50.01% RERHERD
Changchun Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$3,200,000 Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*EMNERREMBRAA HE US$12,000,000 / —  50.01% HARREKLE
Zhangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$2,400,000 Not yet commenced
business
*BEMNRERMmAERAF HhE US$2,100,000 / —  5001% HERHEERSD
Ganzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$420,000 Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*RIEERRMmBERAA le US$2,100,000 / —  5001% HERHERM
Huaihua Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$420,000 Manufacture and sale
of beverages
*HMNERRMBRA A hE US$5,000,000 / —  5001% HARBEKER
Jinzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$1,000,000 Not yet commenced
business
AARERmARRA le US$2,100,000 / —  50.01% HARRERBLE
Honghe Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$420,000 Not yet commenced
business
FEBRRRE (FE)ERAR HE US$87,702,000 —  50.01% ®REER
Master Kong Beverage PRC Investment holding

Investment (China) Co., Ltd.
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Conti

gEMARL amELR/
EEMY BERTRA 15
Place of Registered %t

% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# &
Directly Indirectly
ERERRmBERAA HE US$2,100,000 / —  5001% REREERM
Yancheng Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. ~ PRC US$420,000 Manufacture and
sale of beverages
CRBKERRRERAR hE US$2,100,000 / —  50.01% HARREKLE
Liupanshui Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. ~ PRC US$420,000 Not yet commenced
business
*EEE (B KRARAT i US$12,000,000 / —  50.01% HARREBEE
Master Kong (Kunming) PRC US$2,400,000 Not yet commenced
Beverage Co., Ltd. business
*RIBRRMARRAA HE US$40,000,000 / —  50.01% HARREKLE
Wujiang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$8,000,000 Not yet commenced
business
*BRABEZRMAERAT hE US$12,000,000 / —  5001% HAMBEKLL
Baotou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$9,600,000 Not yet commenced
business
*HEEZRMARAF hE US$12,000,000 / —  50.01% HARREKEE
Nanning Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$9,000,000 Not yet commenced
business
*HERERMAERATF e US$2,100,000 / —  50.01% HERHEERSD
Yichang Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$420,000 Manufacture and
sale of beverages
*BHEEZRMAERAA hE US$2,100,000 / —  5001% BERHEERD
Jieyang Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$420,000 Manufacture and
sale of beverages
*ERBERRMBERAA I US$2,100,000 / —  50.01% HARREKLE
Nanchong Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. ~ PRC usso Not yet commenced
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont

AL/ amEx,/
X BRITRA 1k
Place of Registered % L
% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest  Principal activity
E# &
Directly Indirectly
*EREERmARAT HE US$13,500,000 / —  5001% HARREKLE
Xiamen Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Uss$o Not yet commenced
business
EORRKRERAA i US$2,100,000 / —  5001% HARBEKEE
Yingkou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC Usso Not yet commenced
business
BEREARMARRA g US$5,000,000 / —  5001% HARREKEE
Yantai Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Us$o Not yet commenced
business
BREERmERAA e US$2,100,000 / —  5001% HARBEKEL
Jiuguan Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. *  PRC usso Not yet commenced
business
BRFRARRERAR HhE US$8,600,000  100% — RERHEERKHRX
Xinghua Dinfang PRC Manufacture and sale
Dehydrate Foods Co., Ltd. of dehydrated vegetables
REREEMER A hE US$2,100,000  100% — RERGERHERER
Tian Jin Ting Jia Machinery Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Installation and
maintenance of
plant and machinery
ARBRBABRDA i US$200,000  100% — RHUEERB
Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC Provision of
management services
RERENEERERAA hE US$210,000  100% — REMEFEER
Tianjin Tingquan Properties PRC HEZERRS
Management Co., Ltd. Provision of property

management and related
consultancy services
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Conti

gEMARL amELR/
EEMY ERTRE
Place of Registered

33
I e

% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# &
Directly Indirectly
REREFEHERZBRAA hE US$2,100,000  100% — DERE
Tianjin Dingya Property PRC Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
EBNEREHEREERAA i RMB16,400,000 38% 62% MERE
Guangzhou Dingya Real Estate PRC Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERMERIREERERAR hE US$1,700,000  100% — REIREARHAERSE
Tianjin Tingxin International PRC Provision of engineering
Engineering Consultant Co., Ltd. related consultancy
and research service
JEREVIER AR REEZHE 50,0005 BRFARUSS 100% — REERK
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI 50,000 ordinary Investment holding
shares of US$1
each/US$1,000
@ (AE8) ZERERDA MERS 15,000,000 & &R —  50.01% REER
Tingtong (Cayman Islands) Cayman Islands FRUSS Investment holding
Holding Corp. 15,000,000 ordinary
shares of US$1
each/US$2,118,334
LTERRBYRBRAA hE US$5,000,000 —  50.01% REDRRY
Shanghai Tingtong Logistics Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Logistics services
BEMERMRERDA i US$300,000 —  5001% REWRERSE
Guangzhou Ting Tong PRC Logistics services
Logistics Co., Ltd.
ERBBORERAA e US$500,000 —  5001% REWERE
Beijing Ting Tong Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC Logistics services
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont

AL/ amEx,/
X BRITRA 1k
Place of Registered % L
% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest  Principal activity
E# &
Directly Indirectly
EERBYARBRAA hE US$300,000 —  5001% REDRRYE
Chongging Ting Tong PRC Logistics services
Logistics Co., Ltd.
EGERBYRBERAA e US$300,000 —  5001% REDRRY
Shenyang Ting Tong Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC Logistics services
s (RBRLE)BRERAA RERLEE  50,000% @K FHUSH 100% — KEEZRBARE
Tingyi (BVI) Int'l Co., Ltd. BVI 50,000 ordinary Purchasing and sales
shares of US$1 agent for the Group
each/US$50,000
FEE (BB ESERAF B HK$10,000 /HK$2 ~ 100% — ARBZERARERES
Master Kong (HK) Trading HK Agent and trading of
Company Limited products for the Group
K2 (ZB)AREXHSERAR  $H US$2,100,000  100% — BERHEENERSD
Wei Chuan (Anji) Dairy PRC Manufacture and sale
Farm Co., Ltd. # of milk products
RREEREBREMEATA HE RMB 10,000,000 — 100% REZK
Tianjin Haojia Investment Co., Ltd. #  PRC Investment holding
FERNBRAA =N NT$110,000,000  100% — REZK
Kon Yuan Corporation * Taiwan Investment holding
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

S/ amEx,/
EXE ERTRA 1k
Place of Registered %t
% incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity

HE &
Directly Indirectly

FRENERAF A& NT$96,000,000  100% — REBRKR
Kon Chuan Corporation # Taiwan Investment holding
FERDER AT A& NT$110,000,000  100% — REZK
Kon Jun Corporation * Taiwan Investment holding
* BREWBARGZMARIINEE AR *  These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture companies.
o,
# EXEEREBA #  English translation for identification purposes only.

H AN 5 B A B3R R 2 B B A B3 K The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as wholly-owned
v RAMREEIEERE - foreign enterprises.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 3 to 70, which comprise the
consolidated and the Company’s statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Anuditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

M,A:ZARiCPA LiMITED Page 1 of 70
THiEemssmaras

42ND FLOOR, CENTRAL PLAZA, 18 HARBOUR RoAD, WANCHAI, HONG KONG
EREMTEEE BT NRES 218

TeL: (852) 2909 5555 - FAX: (852) 2810 0032 - info@mazars.com.hk - www.mazars.cn INDE




Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with HKFRS and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Publi¢ Accountants
Hong Kong, 21 March 2012

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 December 2011

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue and other net income
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

Note

11

14

2011 2010
US$’000 US$'000
7,866,580 6,681,482
(5,778,611) (4,782,037)
2,087,969 1,899,445
169,905 183,373
(1,322,975) (1,121,477)
(189,215) (125,953)
(73,336) (92,081)
9,372) (6,511)
- 9,978
662,976 746,774
(163,272) (134,200)
499,704 612,574
419,545 476,787
80,159 135,787
499,704 612,574

US7.51 cents

US7.47 cents

US8.53 cents

1US8.50 cents
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
US$’000 US$°000
Profit for the year 499,704 612,574
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on consolidation 131,746 77,369
Fair value changes in available-for-sale financial assets (16,733) 11,109
Reclassification adjustment for exchange differences
release upon disposal of assets classified as held for sale 3,847) -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 111,166 88,478
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 610,870 701,052
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 498,176 545,221
Non-controlling interests 112,694 155,831
610,870 701,052
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 December 2011

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments and other receivables

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves
Issued capital
Reserves

Total capital and reserves attributable to owners of the
Company

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Long-term interest-bearing borrowings
Other non-current payables

Employee benefit obligations
Deferred tax liabilities

Note

15
17
18
30

19
20
21
22
24
24

25

28

29
30

2011 2010
US$°000 US$ 000
4,029,872 2,922,936
186,276 117,799
104,422 112,659
52,176 50,451
4,372,746 3,203,845
560 771
312,562 309,801
155,040 127,730
367,814 280,704
9,662 12,024
590,390 881,316
1,436,028 1,612,346
- 75,221
5,808,774 4,891,412
27,951 27,934
2,071,794 1,793,324
2,099,745 1,821,258
586,521 547,929
2,686,266 2,369,187
549,382 177,259
- 791
14,064 12,097
131,092 104,165
694,538 294,312
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 Decamber 2011

Current Habllites

Trade payables

Other payables

Cuccent portion of inlerest-bearlng borrowings
Advance payments frony customers

Taxation

Liabilities assaciated witl agsels elnssified as held for sale
Tofal Habilities

Total equity and Hubilltes

Net curyent Habilities

Total asscts less cuvrent Hubflities

2013 2010
Note USEN000 U$$'000
30 974,113 1,083,913
32 660,905 572,249
28 700,695 456,876
66,501 86,940
25,666 25315
2,427,570 2,225,293
- 2,620
3,122,508 2,522,225
5,808,774 4,801,412
(991,042) (612,947)
3,380,804 2,666,119

Approved wud anthorised for (xsie by the Board of Directars on 21 Marel 2012

@

Director

Director

OM
4
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Tingyl (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Statement of Finaneial Position
At 31 Degember 201

ASSETS

Nog-current pssefs

Praperty, plant aud cquipment
Interestin sobyjdiaries
AvalableJoresale financial ngsets

Current assets

Dinancial assels al fair value through profit or loss
Frepayments and other receivablex

Adqnounds due from o subsldiacy

Bank balances and cash

Assefs classified ny held Toy sale
Totul assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIRS
Capifal and rescrvey

Issued capital

Reserves

Total eguity

Non-ciivrent labiiftics

Long-term interesl-benting boreowings
Employee benaflt obligations

Current Habilities

Trode payables

Other payables

Cugrent portion of inferest-bearing borrowings

Total Habilities
Total equity and liabilitles
Net cureent Habilities

Total assels less current Hnbilitivg

Approved and authorised for issug by the Beard of Divectors on 21 Maych 2012

/R

- /

L

Dlrecrs rw

Note

15
16
18

19
22
23

25
26

28
29

3
28

2011 2010
US$'a00 USS* 000
99 (20
504,494 452,865
66,389 16,735
570,982 529,720
560 771
992 1,155
160,000 25,000
6,396 60,196 _
167,948 87,122
. 19,482
738,930 636,324
27,951 27,934
277413 350,628
305364 378,562
205,000 65,000
8,428 7,814
213,425 72,814
2,154 2,126
12,987 25,372
208,000 157,000
220,141 184,948
433,566 257,762
738,930 636,324
(52,193) (97.826)
518,789 451,376

Director

/’7\/‘/(\/7
{
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2011

At 1 January 2010

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on consolidation
Fair value change in available-for-sale financial

assets

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners of the Company:
Equity settled share-based transactions
2009 final dividend paid

Transfer to general reserve

Total transactions with owners of the Company

At 31 December 2010

At 1 January 2011

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on consolidation
Fair value changes in available-for-sale
financial assets
Reclassification adjustment for exchange
differences release upon disposal of assets

classified as held for sale

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners of the Company:

Equity settled share-based transactions

Share issued under share option scheme

2010 final dividend paid

Transfer to general reserve

Realisation on disposal of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary previously classified as asset held
for sale

Total transactions with owners of the Company

At 31 December 2011

Attributable to owners of the Company

Capital Exchange Share-based Investment Total Non-
Issued  redemption Share  translation General payment  revaluation Retained  capital and  controlling
capital reserve premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits reserves interests  Total equity
US$000 US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$°000 US$000 US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$°000 US$'000
27,934 45 330,492 163,968 228,709 3,030 - 708,466 1,462,644 446,420 1,909,064
. - . - - - - 476,787 476,787 135,787 612,574
- - - 57,325 - - - - 57,325 20,044 77,369
- - - - - - 11,109 - 11,109 - 11,109
- - - 57,325 - . 11,109 . 68,434 20,044 88,478
- - - 57,325 - - 11,109 476,787 545,221 155,831 701,052
- - - - - 5,020 - “ 5,020 - 5,020
- - (39,212) . - - N (152,415)  (191,627) (54,322)  (245,949)
- - - - 36,980 - - (36,980) - - -
- - (39,212) - 36,980 5,020 . (189,395)  (186,607) (54,322)  (240,929)
27,934 45 291,280 221,293 265,689 8,050 11,109 995,858 1,821,258 547,929 2,369,187
S ETTITTR  A R TT  FEA—— ET— EEER——
27,934 45 291,280 221,293 265,689 8,050 11,109 995,858 1,821,258 547,929 2,369,187
- - - - - - - 419,545 419,545 80,159 499,704
- - - 97,322 - - - - 97,322 34,424 131,746
- - - - - - (16,733) - (16,733) - (16,733)
- - - (1,958) - - - - (1,958) (1,889) (3,847)
- - - 95,364 - - (16,733) - 78,631 32,535 111,166
- - - 95,364 - - (16,733) 419,545 498,176 112,694 610,870
- - - - - 13,349 - - 13,349 - 13,349
17 - 7,557 - - (2,003) - - 5,571 - 5,571
- - (192,624) - - - - (45,985)  (238,609) (62,916)  (301,525)
R . - - 65,480 - - (65,480) - - -
- - - - (3,109) - - 3,109 . (11,186) (11,186)
17 - (185,067) - 62,371 11,346 - (108,356)  (219,689) (74,102)  (293,791)
27,951 45 106,213 316,657 328,060 19,396 (5,624) 1,307,047 2,099,745 586,521 2,686,266
E— EE——— p———— e ——— R B ———— ———— e ——
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Note US$°000 US$°000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 33 739,353 1,396,225
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) enterprise
income tax paid (135,858) (129,365)
Interest paid (12,871) (6,511)
Net cash from operating activities 590,624 1,260,349
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 38,564 21,479
Dividend income received 1,573 707
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 191 20,000
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (115) (20,000)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (8,496) -
Proceeds from disposal of a non-wholly owned subsidiary
and an associate previously classified as held for sale 88,500 9,833
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,327,420) (965,633)
Prepaid lease payments (85,262) (32,267)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments 52,648 2,810
Net cash used in investing activities (1,239,817) (963,071)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid to owners of the Company (238,609) (191,627)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (62,916) (54,322)
Issue of share capital 5,571 -
Proceeds from borrowings 1,337,643 884,801
Repayments of borrowings (723,683) (586,979)
Net cash from financing activities 318,006 51,873
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (331,187) 349,151
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 893,340 520,189
Effect on exchange rate changes 37,899 24,000
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 24 600,052 893,340
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company™) is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The address of its principal place of business is No. 15, The 3™ Street, Tianjin Economic-
Technological Development Area, Tianjin, PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged in trading of spare parts of
machineries and raw materials. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group™) are
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages and bakery products. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39.

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”), which collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules™).

These financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies
adopted in the 2010 financial statements except for the adoption of the new / revised HKFRS effective
from the current year that are relevant to the Group as detailed in note 4 to the financial statements. A
summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to the financial
statements.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
financing requirements of the Group and the Company in the foreseeable future, as the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by US$991,942,000 (2010. net current liabilities of
US3612,947,000) and the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by US$52,193,000
(2010: net current liabilities of US$97,826,000) at the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group and continuing profitable operations,
the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources to meet in full its financial obligations
as they fall due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

(@)

(b)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these financial statements is historical cost, except for
available-for-sale financial assets at fair value and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
which have been measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries as at 31 December each year. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, is measured initially
either at fair value or at the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the owners
of the Company and the non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling interest having
a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest determined at the date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests at the date
when control is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the disposed subsidiary is recognised on the same basis as would be required if the owners of the
Company had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment retained in the former
subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary is accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, jointly controlled entity or others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

©

@

(e)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over their estimated useful lives as set out below from
the date on which they are available for use and after taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the costs or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated
separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment: - For instant noodles and beverages 12 years

- Others 5to 10 years
Electrical appliances and equipment 5 years
Miscellaneous equipment 3 to 10 years

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes all construction expenditure and other direct costs, including interest
costs, attributable to such projects. Costs on completed construction works are transferred to the
appropriate asset category. No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land
that are classified as operating leases. The premiums are stated at cost and are amortised over the period
of the lease on a straight-line basis to the profit or loss.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

®

®

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an interest in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss. The carrying amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its recoverable
amount on an individual basis. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition ,
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when (i) the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial asset and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. A financial liability is
derecognised only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets or financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are direct attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial liabilities.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. They are carried at fair
value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised in the profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are not held for trading.
They are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except where receivables are
interest-free loans and without any fixed repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition over the period to maturity.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation process are
recognised in the profit or loss.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

(®

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Avdailable-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other categories of financial assets. They are measured at fair
value with changes in value recognised as other comprehensive income and separate component of
equity until the assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the assets are determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive
income shall be reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less impairment loss.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that
financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are impaired. The impairment loss
of financial assets carried at amortised cost is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in subsequent periods through profit or loss
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had determined
the impairment not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, a cumulative loss comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any previously recognised impairment loss, is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value of available-for-sale financial asset after
recognition of impairment loss is recognised in equity. Reversal of impairment loss of available-for-sale
debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the financial asset can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, interest-bearing borrowings and other
non-current payables. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting would
be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer of the contract to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder of the contract for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. The financial
guarantee contracts of the Company represent the financial guarantees in respect of credit facilities
issued to its subsidiaries. The fair values of the financial guarantees have not be recognised in the
statement of financial position of the Company, as the estimation of the fair values of the financial
guarantees would not be meaningful and practicable due to related party nature of the instruments.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash equivalents represent short-term
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency”).
The Company’s functional currency is United States Dollars (“US$”’) and majority of its subsidiaries
have Renminbi (“RMB”) as their functional currency. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in USS$, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

Page 15 of 70




Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

()

®)

@

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement presented are translated at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year;

(¢) all resulting exchange differences arising from the above translation and exchange differences
arising from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, which includes the disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation and the loss of control of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences deferred in the separate component of equity
relating to that foreign operation is recognised in the profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal
is recognised.

Inventories »

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition, is calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal and external sources of information to
assess whether there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
may be impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversal of
impairment losses is recognised as income immediately.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the temporary investment of the respective
borrowings, that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are
classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in
the profit or loss as an integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the relevant PRC authorities in respect of the
running of business by the Group in certain development zones and to encourage the furtherance of
such business.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to the profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme are recognised as expenses
in profit or loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior the contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

) Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are generally funded by payments from employees and the Group, taking into
account of the recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The Group’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for
each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods, which is discounted to the present value and reduced by the
fair value of any plan assets.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised
past service cost, and reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if any. Any asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to the net total of any cumulative unrecognised net actuarial losses and past
service costs, plus the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. If there is no change or a decrease in the present value of the economic
benefits, the entire net actuarial gains or losses with the past service cost of the current period is
recognised immediately.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions,
which exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of the Group’s defined benefit obligations and
the fair value of plan assets are amortised over the expected average remaining working lives of the
participating employees. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits
are already vested and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until
the benefits become vested.

@ Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in exchange for shares or rights over shares. The
cost of such transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair
value is determined using the binomial model taking into account the terms and conditions of the
transactions, other than conditions linked to the price of shares of the Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the year(s) in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting date”). During the vesting period, the
number of share options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged / credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve within equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled transactions (continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to retained profits. Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position which is eliminated on consolidation, with
a corresponding credit to the reserve within equity.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on interest in subsidiaries except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group:

(2)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that person:

()
(i1)
(iii)

Has control or joint control over the Group;
Has significant influence over the Group; or
Is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(1)
(i)

(iii)
(iv)

V)

(vi)
(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, have been identified as the chief
operating decision-makers that make strategic decisions.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Future changes in HKFRS

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new / revised standards and amendments to HKFRS that are not yet effective for the
current year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKFRS 1 (Revised)
Amendments to HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

Presentation of Financial Statements - Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters 2

Financial Instruments. Disclosures -Transfer of Financial
Assets

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities™

Income Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities J

Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits 4

Separate Financial Statements M

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Financial Instruments ¥/

Consolidated financial statements

Joint Arrangements 4

Disclosures of Interests with Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement ™

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine il

i

4

e

2

[ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
[ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
B] Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
(4] Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
0] Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
81 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The directors are in the process of assessing the possible impact of the future adoption of these new /
revised HKFRS, but are not yet in a position to reasonably estimate their impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW /REVISED HKFRS

The HKICPA has issued one revised HKFRS, a number of amendments to HKFRS and one new
Interpretation that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the Group’s financial statements are as
follows:

HKAS 24 (Revised) - Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 was revised to include a new definition of related party and to provide a partial exemption
from the disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions and outstanding balances,
including commitments, with:

(a) a government that has control, joint control or significant influence over the reporting entity; and
(b) another entity that is a related party because the same government has control, joint control or
significant influence over both the reporting entity and the other entity.

The Group adopted the new definition in its accounting policies but such adoption does not have an
effect on the disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The modified disclosure
requirements for government-related entities also do not impact the Group because the Group is not
a government-related entity.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
The improvements comprise a number of improvements to standards including the following that are
considered to be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instrument Disclosures: Clarification of disclosures

The Amendments clarify the required level of disclosures about credit risk and collateral held and
provide relief from disclosures previously required for renegotiated loans. The disclosures about the
financial instruments in the consolidated financial statements in note 36 are conformed to the
amended disclosure requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised): Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarification of statement
of changes in equity

The Amendments clarify that the reconciliation of each components of other comprehensive income
may be presented either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial
statements. The Group has decided to continue presenting the reconciliation on the face of the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes: Fair value of award credits
The Amendments clarify that when the fair value of award credits is measured on the basis of the
value of the awards for which they could be redeemed, the fair value of the award credits should take
into account of expected forfeitures as well as the discounts or incentives that would otherwise be
offered to customers who have not earned award credits from an initial sale. The adoption of this
Interpretation has no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW / REVISED HKFRS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 - Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

The Amendments apply when an entity is subject to minimum funding requirements for its defined
benefits retirement plan and makes an early payment of contributions to cover those requirements.
The Amendments permit such an entity to treat the benefit of such an early payment as an asset.
Previously, if the Group did not have an unconditional right to a refund of surplus, a prepayment
was recognised as an expense.

Since there is no minimum funding requirement in the defined benefit plans of the Group, the
adoption of this amendment to the Interpretation has no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made by the management in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the application of the Group’s
accounting policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made.
They are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period of revision and future periods,
in case the revision also affects future periods.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and depreciation / amortisation method of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments at the end of each reporting period,
through careful consideration with regards to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the impairment no
longer exists, the directors have to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine the level of
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Deferred tax assets

As at the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset in relation to unused tax losses has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position. The recognition of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are different from the original estimate, a
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed.
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6. TURNOVER

The Group's turnover represents revenue arising from the sale of goods at invoiced value to customers,
net of returns, discounts and Value Added Tax.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have been identified as the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The
Group has identified its operating segments and prepared segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the Company’s executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s business components and review of these components’
performance. The Company’s executive directors consider the business principally from a product
perspective as over 99% of the Group’s sales and business are conducted in the PRC. Business
reportable operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages, instant food (formerly
known as “bakery”) and others.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating segments and allocating resources
between segments, the executive directors assess segment net profit for the year which is consistent
with that in the financial statements.

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current assets with the exception of available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Segment liabilities include
trade payables and other payables, interest-bearing borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and advance
payments from customers with the exception of employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The accounting policies of the reporting
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on the location at which the goods are
delivered. Over 99% of the revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group's operating entities. Meanwhile,
over 99% of the Group's non-current assets other than available-for-sale financial assets are located
in the PRC.

No revenue from a single external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment information for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Business segment analysis

2011
Inter-
Instant Instant segment
noodles Beverages ~ food Others elimination Group
US$’000 US$000  US$000 US$ 000 US$000 US$°000
Turnover
Revenue from external
customers 3,592,270 3,998,702 201,432 74,176 - 7,866,580
Inter-segment revenue 119 1,804 67 82,766 (84,756) -

3,592,389 4,000,506 201,499 156,942 (84,756) 7,866,580

Segment revenue

Segment result after
finance costs and

Profit before taxation 418,044 208,460 5,862 35,459 (4,849) 662,976
Taxation (112,220 (49,252) 330 (2,130) - (163,272)
Profit for the year 305,824 159,208 6,192 33,329 (4,849) 449,704
Assets
Segment assets 2,520,574 3,442,346 173,846 811,780 (1,244,754) 5,703,792
Unallocated assets 104,982
Total assets M_
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 888,017 2,279,707 74,232 723,268 (856,780) 3,108,444
Unallocated liabilities 14,064
Total liabilities 3,122,508
Other information
Capital expenditures 256,935 1,069,045 17,388 6,121 - 1,349,489

In June 2011, the Company completed the disposal of a non-wholly owned subsidiary and an
associate previously classified as assets held for sale at a consideration in aggregate of
US$98,333,000 to a company jointly controlled by the Company’s directors. Gain on the disposal of
US$39,175,000 has been recognised in the segments results under “Others” segment and included in
the other net income in the consolidated income statement.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Business segment analysis (Continued)

2010
Instant
food Inter-
Instant (formerly segment
noodles Beverages  “Bakery”) Others elimination Group
US$’000 US$000  US$000 US$000 US$°000 US$°000
Turnover
Revenue from external
customers 2,931,555 3,531,911 161,383 56,633 - 6,681,482
Inter-segment revenue 78 1,855 45 87,217 (89,195) -

2,931,633 3,533,766 161,428 143,850 (89,195) 6,681,482

Segment revenue

Segment results after
finance costs 372,698 325,672 3,179 (30,098) (3,308) 668,143

Share of results of

associates - - - - 9,978
Gain on discontinuation

of equity accounting

for an associate - - - - 68,653
Profit before taxation 372,698 325,672 3,179 (30,098) 746,774
Taxation (66,711) (62,543) (1,800) (3,146) (134,200)
Profitfor theyear o JU 26319 L3934 612574
Assets
Segment assets 1,969,050 2,554,156 136,484 634,322 (641,702) 4,652,310
Unallocated assets 239,102
Total assets M%_
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 746,089 1,511,496 54,680 405,788 (314,710) 2,403,343
Unallocated liabilities 118,882
Total liabilities 22522,225

Other information
213,713 732,666 5,002 8,331 5,921 965,633

Capital expenditures ——— p—— ——— ——— ——————
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8.

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

Other revenue
Interest income
Dividend income

Other net income

Exchange gains, net

Gain on sales of scrapped materials

Government grants

Gain on discontinuation of equity accounting for an associate

Gain on disposal of a non-wholly owned subsidiary and an associate
previously classified as assets held for sale

Others

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
This is stated after charging (crediting):

Finance costs
Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly repayable within five years
Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into property, plant and equipment

at weighted average capitalisation rate of 1.32% (2010: 1.36%,)

Other items
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
Salaries and wages
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
Pension costs: Defined contribution plans
Defined benefit plans
Auditor’s Fees:
Auditor’s remuneration
Non-audit services
Cost of inventories
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment (included in other
operating expenses)
Minimum lease payments in respect of operating lease charges for premises
(Gain) Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

2011 2010
US$°000 US$°000
38,564 21,479
1,573 1,701
40,137 23,180
15,811 7,792
23,282 19,770
28,521 38,958
- 68,653
39,175 .
22,979 25,020
129,768 160,193
169,905 183,373
2011 2010
US$°000 US$°000
12,871 8,077
(3,499) (1,566)
9,372 6,511
562,550 444,390
11,346 5,020
64,072 42,931
3,328 1,364
1,343 1,086
121 190
5,778,611 4,782,037
317,544 275,054
3,697 2,544
4,169 35,520
58,967 40,121
74 8,083
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or receivable by the Company’s directors are as

follows:
2011
Salaries Share- Retirement
Directors’ and other  Discretionary based scheme
fees emoluments bonuses Sub-total payments contribution Total
US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$ 000 US$ 000 US$°000 US$ 000
Executive directors:
Wei Ing-Chou 200 990 427 1,617 2,607 1 4,225
Takeshi Ida 80 16 - 96 - - 96
Wu Chung-Yi 50 4 - 54 - - 54
Wei Ying-Chiao 50 16 - 66 - - 66
Ryo Yoshizawa 50 32 - 82 - - 82
Junichiro Ida 50 16 - 66 - - 66
Independent non-
executive directors;
Hsu Shin-Chun 50 16 - 66 - - 66
Lee Tiong-Hock 50 12 - 62 - - 62
Michihiko Ota 22 8 - 30 - - 30
Daisuke Okada 28 4 - 32 - - 32
630 1,114 427 2,171 2,607 1 4,779

On 13 June 2011, Mr Michihiko Ota resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company and Mr
Daisuke Okada was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company. On 3 January 2012, Mr
Dajsuke Okada resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company and Mr Hiromu Fukada was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company.

2010
Salaries Share- Retirement
Directors’ and other  Discretionary based scheme
fees  emoluments bonuses Sub-total ~ payments contribution Total
US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$ 000 US$§'000
Executive directors:
Wei Ing-Chou 200 760 384 1,344 1,112 1 2,457
Takeshi Ida 80 4 - 84 - - 84
Wu Chung-Yi 50 12 - 62 - - 62
Wei Ying-Chiao 50 16 - 66 - - 66
Ryo Yoshizawa 50 16 - 66 - - 66
Junichiro Ida 50 16 - 66 - - 66
Independent non-
executive directors:
Hsu Shin-Chun 50 12 - 62 - - 62
Lee Tiong-Hock 50 8 - 58 - - 58
Michio Kuwahara 13 4 - 17 - - 17
Michihiko Ota 29 8 - 37 - - 37
622 856 384 1,862 1,112 1 2,975
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
No directors have waived emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include one
director (2010. one) whose emoluments is reflected in the analysis presented above. Details of the
emoluments of the remaining four individuals (20/0: four) are as follows:

2011 2010
Us$’000 US$°000
Salaries and other emoluments 1,636 1,453
Share-based payments 3,514 1,600
Discretionary bonuses 525 443
Retirement scheme contribution 4 5
5,679 3,501
The emoluments were paid to the four highest paid individuals as follows:

Emoluments band Number of individuals
2011 2010
US$576,924 to US$705,128 (HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,500,000) - 1
US$705,129 to US$833,333 (HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,500,000) 1

US$833,334 to US$961,538 (HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,500,000) 1
US$961,539 to US$1,089,744 (HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,500,000) -
US$1,089,745 to US$1,217,949 (HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,500,000) -
US$1,217,950 to US$1,345,154 (HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,500,000) 1 -
US$1,345,155to US$1,474,359 (HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,500,000) - -
US$1,474,360 to US$1,602,564 (HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,500,000) - -
US$1,602,565 to US$1,730,769 (HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,500,000) - -
US$1,730,770 to US$1,858,974 (HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,500,000) 2 -

[ |
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11.

TAXATION
2011 2010
Us$’000 US$°000
Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax
Current year 143,516 135,188
(Over) / Under provision in prior year (5,446) 698
138,070 135,886
Deferred taxation
Origination and reversal of temporary differences, net 1,438 (31,236)
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable profits
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries (Note 30) 23,764 29,550
25,202 (1,686)
Total tax charge for the year 163,272 134,200

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company and the Group.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group entities either incurred losses for taxation
purpose or had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profit Tax for the years ended 2011 and
2010.

For the PRC subsidiaries not entitled to a preferential PRC enterprise income tax, the applicable PRC
enterprise income tax is at a statutory rate of 25% (2010: 25%).

Subsidiaries in the PRC which engage in manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages and bakery
products are subject to tax laws applicable to foreign investment enterprises in the PRC. Most of the
subsidiaries are located at state-level economic development zones and were entitled to a preferential
PRC enterprise income tax rate of 15% before 31 December 2007. Also, they were fully exempt from
PRC enterprise income tax for two years starting from the first profit-making year followed by a 50%
reduction for the next three years, commencing from the first profitable year after offsetting all
unexpired tax losses carried forward from the previous years.

According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui [2011] no. 58) on the Grand Development of Western
Region jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and China
Customs, foreign investment enterprises located in the western region of PRC with principal revenue of
over 70% generated from the encouraged business activities are entitled to a preferential income tax rate
of 15% for 10 years from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2020. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries
located in the Western Region are entitled to a preferential rate of 15% (2010.15%,).

Pursuant to the State Council Circular on the Implementation of the Transitional Concession Polices for
Enterprise Income Tax (Guo Fa [2007] no. 39), enterprises previously entitled to a reduced tax rate shall
have a grace period of five years regarding the tax reduction commencing on 1 January 2008; the
subsidiaries which were entitled to a 15% enterprise income tax rate will be subjected to tax rates of
18% in 2008, 20% in 2009, 22% in 2010, 24% in 2011 and 25% in 2012 and thereafter. The
subsidiaries that have been granted a preferential income tax rate of 15% in the Grand Development of
Western Region shall continue to enjoy the preferential income tax rate until expiry.
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11. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from theoretical amount that would arise

using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2010: 25%) as follows:

Reconciliation of tax expenses

2011 2010
Uss$’000 Us$ 000
Profit before taxation 662,976 746,774
Income Tax at statutory tax rate of 25% in the PRC (2010.:25%) 165,744 186,694
Non-deductible expenses 17,059 14,242
Tax exempt revenue (31,869) (20,870)
Unrecognised tax losses 12,081 5,066
Unrecognised temporary differences 201 (27,605)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (109) (231)
Effect of preferential tax rates (10,638) (22,888)
Effect of tax relief on PRC’s subsidiaries in Western Region (7,852) (17,287)
Effect of tax concessions granted to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries (4,247) (13,631)
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable profits
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries (Note 30) 23,764 29,550
(Over) / Under provision in prior years (5,446) 698
Over provision in current year 4,341 -
Others 243 462
Tax expense for the year 163,272 134,200
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12.

13.

(a)

(b)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company includes a profit of US$48,447,000
(2010: profit of US$1,904,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for the year:

2011 2010
Us$°000 US$°000
Amount of consolidated profit attributable to owners dealt with in the
Company’s financial statements 48,447 1,904
Dividends from subsidiaries and associates attributable to the profits
of the previous financial years, approved and paid during the year 116,832 44,081
Company’s profit for the year 165,279 45,985
DIVIDENDS
Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to the year:
2011 2010
Uss$’000 US$°000
Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period of
US3.75 cents (2010: US4.27 cents) per ordinary share 209,629 238,556

At meeting held on 21 March 2012, the directors recommended the payment of final dividend of
US3.75 cents per ordinary share. The proposed final dividend has not been recognised as dividend
payables in the statement of financial position, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained

profits for the year ending 31 December 2012.

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to the previous financial year, approved

and paid during the year:
2011
US$°000
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year, of US4.27 cents (2010: US3.43 cents)
per ordinary share 238,609

2010
US$°000

191,627
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows:

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (US$°000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (’000)
Basic earnings per share (US cents)

Diluted earnings per share

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (US$°000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
(’000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Effect of the Company’s share option scheme

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculated diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share (US cents)

2011 2010
419,545 476,787
5,588,567 5,586,793
7.51 8.53
2011 2010
419,545 476,787
5,588,567 5,586,793
24,949 20,402
5,613,516 5,607,195
7.47 8.50

ll
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
Electrical
Machinery appliances
and and Miscellaneous Construction
Buildings equipment equipment equipment in progress Total
US$°000 US$°000 US3'000 US$ 000 US3'000 US$°000
Reconciliation of carrying amount —
year ended 31 December 2010
At beginning of year 461,086 1,298,637 13,471 74,913 368,531 2,216,638
Additions 9,394 253,296 3,183 75,310 624,450 965,633
Transfer upon completion 101,199 308,357 215 14,029 ©(423,800) -
Impairment loss (Note i) (5,846) (28,704) - (970) - (35,520)
Disposals (3,180) (4,776) (280) (2,476) - (10,712)
Transferred to assets classified as held
for sale (1,637) (1,599) an (1,313) 217) (4,843)
Depreciation (30,307) (190,256) (3,877 (50,614) - (275,054)
Exchange differences 14,532 36,439 1,583 2,209 12,031 66,794

545,241 1,671,394 14,218 111,088 580,995 2,922,936

At end of the reporting period

Reconciliation of carrying amount —
year ended 31 December 2011

At beginning of year 545241 1,671,394 14,218 111,088 580,995 2,922,936
Additions 20,904 225,592 4,280 113,767 984,946 1,349,489
Transfer upon completion 86,548 486,191 282 19,725 (592,746) -
Impairment loss (Note i) - (4,169) - - - (4,169)
Reversal of impairment loss (Note i) - 3,500 - - - 3,500
Disposals (50,553) (3,058) (282) (2,552) - (56,445)
Depreciation (36,191) (199,637) (4,455) (77,261) - (317,544)
Exchange differences 25,626 72,431 535 5,955 27,558 132,105

591,575 2,252,244 14,578 170,722 1,000,753 4,029,872

At end of the reporting period

At 1 January 2011

Cost 789,750 2,714,615 34,176 218,621 580,995 4,338,157
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (244,509) (1,043,221) (19,958) (107,533) - (1,415,221)

545,241 1,671,394 14,218 111,088 580,995 2,922,936

Net carrying amount

At 31 December 2011
Cost 843,503 3,498,465 38,174 355,998 1,000,753 5,736,893
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (251,928) (1,246,221) (23,596) (185,276) - (1,707,021)

591,575 2,252,244 14,578 170,722 1,000,753 4,029,872

Net carrying amount

Notes :

(i) During the year, the Group carried out a review of the recoverable amounts of its manufacturing machineries, having regards to the ongoing
programme of modernisation, expansion and the introduction of new product lines. The review determined that a number of those assets were to
be impaired due to prolonged idle and technical obsolescence. Accordingly, the carrying amounts of these manufacturing machineries were
written down by US$4,169,000 (2010: US$29,674,000). The impairment losses of US$5,846,000 in respect of certain production plants were
made in prior year mainly due to closure of non-core production factories. The estimates of the recoverable amounts of these manufacturing
plant and machineries, principally based on their fair value less costs to sell, determined by reference to the recent observable market prices for
similar assets in the market. During the year, due to successful reformation, certain machineries which have been impaired previously, are
currently used in production of more profitable products. At the end of the reporting period, the Group re-assessed the recoverable amounts of
these machineries and impairment loss of US$3,500,000 was reversed (2010: USSNil).
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15.

()

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Company
2011 2010
Machinery Machinery
and  Miscellaneous and Miscellaneous
equipment equipment Total equipment equipment Total
Us$’000 US$’000 US'$°000 US$°000 US$ 000 US3$'000
Reconciliation of
carrying amount
At beginning of the year 90 30 120 118 13 131
Additions - 12 12 - 23 23
Disposals 1)) 6} ¥)) 9)) o)) )
Depreciation 22) ) 31 (34 (&) 39
Exchange differences - - - 7 - 7
At end of the reporting
period 67 32 99 90 30 120
At 31 December
Cost 835 62 897 846 71 917
Accumulated depreciation (768) 30) (798) (756) 41 (797)
Net carrying amount 67 32 99 90 30 120
INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company
2011 2010
US3°000 US$°000
Unlisted shares, at cost 343,739 343,739
Contribution to a subsidiary 6,422 2,542
Impairment losses (33,065) (33,065)
317,096 313,216
Amounts due from subsidiaries 248,764 247,821
Impairment losses (10,853) (9,094)
237,911 238,727
Amounts due to subsidiaries (50,513) (99,078)

504,494 452,865

Impairment losses were recognised for certain interest in subsidiaries with carrying amounts of
US$36,613,000 (2010: US$36,613,000) (before deducting the impairment loss) because their
carrying values exceed the recoverable amounts of the assets.

An impairment was recognised for amounts due from certain subsidiaries with carrying amounts of
US$17,124,000 (2010: US$17,102,000) (before deducting the impairment loss) because the
subsidiaries had suffered continuous losses with no positive cash flows in the foreseeable future.
Impairment loss of US$1,759,000 (2010: US39,094,000) has been recognised during the year.
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16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Amounts due from / to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment term but
are not expected to be realised / repaid within the next twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.
Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 are shown in note 39.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding during the year or at the end of the
reporting period.

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for medium-term leasehold land in the PRC. The cost is
amortised over the leasehold period. The amount to be amortised within twelve months after the end of

the reporting period amounted to US$4,290,000 (2010: US$2,866,000) and is included in prepayments
and other receivables.

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
US$°000 Us$000 US$’000 US$°000

Equity security, listed outside Hong Kong
At fair value 92,518 109,251 55,095 73,937
Private investment funds
At fair value 8,496 - 8,496 -
Equity securities, unlisted
At costs 11,452 11,452 3,140 3,140
Impairment losses (8,044) (8,044) (342) (342)

3,408 3,408 2,798 2,798

104,422 112,659 66,389 76,735

The fair value of the listed securities is determined based on the quoted market bid price available in the
Taiwan Stock Exchange. Changes in fair value of US$16,733,000 (2010: US$11,109,000 were
credited to investment revaluation reserve) were debited to investment revaluation reserve.

The private investment funds represent investments in two overseas funds which were set up by
limited partnership in Cayman Islands and liability limited by shares in British Virgin Islands
respectively, aim at achieving substantial return. The Company has entered into agreements and
committed to invest in aggregate of US$50,000,000 (2010 US$Nil) in these funds, of which amount
of US$8,496,000 was paid during the reporting period. The fair values of these funds are valued by
the respective investment managers at the end of the reporting period.
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18.

19.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The unlisted investments represent long-term investments in unlisted equity securities. They are
measured at cost less impairment loss at the end of each reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

The Group has no intention to dispose of the investments in available-for-sale financial assets.

The available-for-sales financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
USs$ '000 US$°000 USS$ 000 US$°000
USS 9,510 1,014 9,510 1,014
RMB 732 732 - -
New Taiwan dollar (“NTD”) 93,954 110,809 56,653 75,495
Others 226 104 226 226

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Us$’000 US$°000 US3$°000 US$°000
Investments held for trading
Equity securities, listed outside Hong Kong 551 762 551 762
USS$ currency fund 9 9 9 9
560 771 560 771

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
USS$ ’000 US$°000 US$ 000 US$°000
US$ 9 9 9 9

NTD 551 762 551 762
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20. INVENTORIES

Group
2011 2010
US3°000 US$°000
Raw materials ‘ 145,095 169,556
Work in progress 14,909 11,822
Finished goods 152,558 128,423

312,562 309,801

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The majority of the Group’s sales is cash-on-delivery. The remaining balances of sales are mainly at
credit term ranging from 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts), based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Group
2011 2010
US$’000 US$°000
0 —90 days 146,883 121,849
Over 90 days 8,157 5,881

155,040 127,730

Ageing of amounts that are past due but not impaired:

Group
2011 2010
US$°000 US$°000

Balances exceeded normal credit period:

Within 30 days 4,567 4,147
31-90 days ; 3,214 2,621
Over 90 days 2,665 1,232

10,446 8,000

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default,

The trade receivables that are past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the Group. The Group has not impaired these debtors
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the directors believe that the amounts
are recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
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22,

22(a)

23.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
Note US$’000 US$°000 US$’000 US3°000

Prepayments to suppliers for purchase
of goods 5,179 8,103 - -

Prepayments for purchase of

equipments 30,010 28,654 - -
Prepaid value-added taxes 71,874 62,550 - -
Prepaid operating expenses 119,591 71,789 - -
Loan receivables 22(a) 102,393 57,843 - -
Others 38,767 51,765 992 1,155
367,814 280,704 992 1,155

Loan receivables

Loan receivables represent the advances by wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company to raw
materials suppliers of the Group for the purpose of the operations use of the suppliers. The loan
receivables are unsecured, repayable within 12 months from the date of drawdown and bear interest
ranging from 5.35% to 7.02% (2010: from 4.99% to 5.60%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the next twelve months after the end of the
reporting period. The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting period, determined
based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted using prevailing market
rate, approximate their corresponding carrying amount.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no interest due but unpaid and no provision had been
made for non-repayment of the advances and interest.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY

Amounts due from a subsidiary of US$160,000,000 (2010: US$20,000,000 and US35,000,000) are
unsecured, bearing interest at 1.45% (2010: 1.255% and 1.25% respectively) per annum and
repayable within 1 year.
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24, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group
2011 2010
US3°000 Us3°000
Bank balances and cash 590,390 881,316
Pledged bank deposits 9,662 12,024

As stated in the consolidated statement of cash
flows 600,052 893,340

The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and trade finance facilities, including the
issuance of bank acceptance bills, granted to the Group by banks.

The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

Group
2011 2010
US$°000 UsS$°000
RMB 500,352 799,484
USS$ 81,645 84,836
. EUR 12,897 1,703
Others 5,158 7,317

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk discussion are set out in note 36.

25, ISSUED CAPITAL

Company
2011 2010
No. of shares Uss$’000 No. of shares US$°000
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of US$0.005
each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000
Issued and fully paid:
At the beginning of the year 5,586,793,360 27,934 5,586,793,360 27,934
Shares issued under share
option scheme 3,320,000 17 - -
At the end of the reporting
period 5,590,113,360 27,951 5,586,793,360 27,934

During May to August 2011, 3,320,000 options were exercised to subscribe for 3,320,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at a consideration of US$5,571,000 of which US$17,000 was credited to
share capital and the balance of US$5,554,000 was credited to the share premium account.
US$2,003,000 has been transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share premium
account.
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26. RESERVES
Company
Capital Exchange  Share-based Investment
redemption Share translation payment revaluation Retained
reserve  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Us$°000 US$’000 US$°000 US$’000 US$'000 US$°000 US$°000
At 1 January 2010 45 330,492 (1,233) 3,030 - 152,415 484,749
Profit for the year - - - - - 45985 45,985
Other comprehensive income
Exchange translation difference - - (1,017) - - - (1,017)
Fair value change in of available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - 7,518 - 7,518
Total other comprehensive income - - (1,017) - 7,518 - 6,501
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (1,017) - 7,518 45,985 52,486
Transactions with owners of the
Company:
Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 5,020 - - 5,020
2009 final dividend paid - (39,212) - - . (152,415) (191,627)
Total transactions with owners of the
Company - (39,212) - 5,020 - (152,415)  (186,607)
At 31 December 2010 45 291,280 (2,250) 8,050 7,518 45,985 350,628
At 1 January 2011 45 291,280 (2,250) 8,050 7,518 45,985 350,628
Profit for the year - - - - - 165,279 165,279
Other comprehensive income
Exchange translation difference - - 54 - - - 54
Fair value change in available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - (18,842) - (18,842)
Total other comprehensive income - - 54 - (18,842) - (18,788)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 54 - (18,842) 165,279 146,491
Transactions with owners of the
Company:
Equity-settled share-based transactions - - - 13,349 - - 13,349
Share issued under share option scheine - 7,557 - (2,003) - - 5,554
2010 final dividend paid - (192,624) - - - (45,985)  (238,609)
Total transactions with owners of the
Company - (185,067) - 11,346 - (45,985) (219,706)
At 31 December 2011 45 106,213 (2,196) 19,396 (11,324) 165,279 277,413
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26.

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands on repurchases and cancellations of the Company's own shares.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a company issues shares at a premium,
whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value of the premiums on
their shares shall be transferred to share premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The Company’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2011 amounted to US$271,492,000 (2010:
US$337,265,000).

Exchange translation reserve
The exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for foreign currency translation.

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC subsidiaries are required to appropriate to
the general reserve an amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation (as reported in
the respective statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with PRC
accounting regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of
the respective PRC subsidiaries, the enterprise may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant date of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Group and will be dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve has been set up and will be dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for the changes of fair value in available-for-sale financial assets as set out in
note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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217,

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
20 March 2008. The Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants (as defined below) had or may have made to
the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to:-

() any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii)  any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue at the time the
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders (i.e. 20 March 2008). At the end of reporting period, the
number of shares in respect of which options had been granted was 71,194,000 (2010: 53,492,000)
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was 62,273,000 (2010: 49,714,000), representing 1.1%
(2010: 0.9%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in
excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. The
options will be vested after five years from the date of grant. A nominal consideration at HK$1 was
paid by each option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION (CONTINUED)

Details of share options granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme and the share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Number of share Number of share
Grant date options granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2011 010 HKS$

20 March 2008 11,760,000 9,760,000 10,680,000 9.28 21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018

22 April 2009 26,688,000 22,404,000 24,230,000 9.38 23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019

1 April 2010 15,044,000 13,609,000 14,804,000 18.57 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020

12 April 2011 17,702,000 16,500,000 - 19.96 12 April 2016 to

11 April 2021

Movements in the number of option outstanding and their weighted average exercise prices are as

follows:
Group and Company
2011 2010
Weighted Weighted

average Number average Number

exercise price of options exercise price of options

HK3 000 HK$ 000

At the beginning of year 12.10 49,714 9.35 37,126
Exercised during the year 13.14 (3,320) - -
Granted during the year 19.96 17,702 18.57 15,044
Forfeited during the year 15.48 (1,823) 10.24 (2,456)

At the end of the reporting period 14,18 62,273 12.10 49,714

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for shares options exercised during the year
was $23.59. No share option was exercised during the year ended 31 December 2010.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2011 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of
7.86 years (2010: 8.35 years).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and up to the date of these financial statements, 186,000
share options under the Share Option Scheme were exercised.
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the share options granted is measured at the date of grant, using the binomial option
pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the share-based arrangement. The fair
value calculated is inherently subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the
limitations of the model used. The inputs into the model are as follows:-

Share options granted on

20 March 2008 22 April 2009 1 April 2010 12 April 2011

Fair value at grant date HK$3.74 per share HK$3.34 per share HK$7.24 per share HK$7.61 per share
Share price at grant date ~ HK$8.55 per share HK$9.37 per share HK$18.42 per share ~ HK$19.88 per share

Exercise price HK$9.28 per share HK$9.38 per share HK$18.57 per share ~ HK$19.96 per share
Risk-free interest rate 4.37% 2.51% 4.10% 4.30%

Expected volatility 40% 36% 33% 31%

Expected life 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years

Expected dividend yield 2% 2% 2% 2%

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the Company’s share price
over the last one year of share option granted. The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.

During 2011, US$13,349,000 (2010: US$5,020,000) was charged to profit or loss in respect of equity
settled share-based transactions.

28. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Us$’000 US$§°000 Uss$’000 Us$'000
The maturity of the unsecured bank loans is
as follows;
Within one year 700,695 456,876 205,000 157,000
In the second year 107,814 91,964 35,000 40,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 441,568 85,295 170,000 25,000
1,250,077 634,135 410,000 222,000
Portion classified as current liabilities (700,695) (456,876) (205,000) (157,000)
Non-current portion 549,382 177,259 205,000 65,000

The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank loans is 1.32% (2010. 1.36%4) per annum.
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28, INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s total borrowings by type is

as follows:
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
US$°000 US$°'000 US$°000 US$'000
At fixed rates 50,366 60,055 - -
At floating rates 1,199,711 574,080 410,000 222,000
1,250,077 634,135 410,000 222,000
The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
US$’000 US$°000 US$’000 US3$°000
RMB 81,031 9,918 - -
US$ 1,074,925 535,690 410,000 222,000
JPY 20,025 - - -
EUR 74,006 88,527 - -

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and interest rate risk discussion are set out in note 36.

29, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised by the relevant local government
authorities in the PRC for all PRC employees whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant portion of the payroll of these
employees to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the PRC employees other than the monthly

contributions described above.
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29, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

Defined benefit plans

The Group has defined benefit plans for Taiwan employees. Pension obligation is provided based on
the length of service and average monthly salary for the final six months of employment. The
contributions made by the Group during the year were calculated based on advice from Messrs.
Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Towers Watson™), an independent actuaries and consultants. The
latest actuarial valuation was performed by Towers Watson as at 31 December 2011 using the

projected unit credit method.

The amounts included in the statement of financial position arising from the obligation of the Group

and the Company in respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Uss$’000 Us3$°000 US3’000 US$°000
Present value of unfunded obligations 33,730 27,037 18,301 15,538
Net actuarial losses not recognised (19,666) (14,940) (9,876) (7,724)
Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation 14,064 12,097 8,425 7,814

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

Us$°000 Us3'000 Uss3’000 Us$°000

At beginning of year 27,037 18,193 15,538 11,009
Current service cost 1,707 1,268 860 657
Interest cost 550 367 225 222
Actuarial losses 6,312 5,922 3,095 2,865
Benefits paid 932) - (932) -
Exchange differences (944) 1,287 (485) 785
At end of the reporting period 33,730 27,037 18,301 15,538

Page 47 of 70




Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

29, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

Total amount of expense recognised in the consolidated income statement:

Current service cost

Interest cost

Net actuarial losses recognised during the year
Under-provided

Net expense for the year included in administrative expenses

The principal assumptions used for accounting purposes were:

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increases

Historical information:

Group
2011 2010
US$’000 US$°000
1,707 1,268
550 367
1,071 534
- (805)
3,328 1,364
Group and Company

2011 2010
% %

1.75 2.00

10.00 10.00

Group
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Uss$°000 US$°000

Present value of the defined benefit

US$°000 US$°000 US$°000

obligations 33,730 27,037 18,193 10,255 7,718
Experience adjustments arising on
plan liabilities 5,093 (1,433) (903) 1,815 735
Company
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

US3$°000 US$°000

Present value of the defined benefit
obligations 18,301 15,538

US$°000 US$°000 US$°000

Experience adjustments arising on
plan liabilities 2,458 (1,091)
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30.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The movement for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax position was as follows:

Group
2011 2010
US$’000 US$°000
At beginning of year 53,714 55,400
Charge (credit) to consolidated income
statement 25,202 (1,686)
At end of the reporting period 78,916 53,714

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period represent the
followings:

Group
2011 2010

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

USs$’000 US$’000 US$ 000 US$°000
Accelerated depreciation allowance - (36,544) - (27,637)
Decelerated depreciation allowance 296 - 282 -
Impairment losses 10,624 - 14,621 -
Un-invoiced accrual 32,088 - 25,797 -
Withholding tax - (92,649) - (68,885)
Others 9,168 (1,899) 9,751 (7,643)
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 52,176 (131,092) 50,451 (104,165)

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
distributed to foreign investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings accumulated after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between PRC
and jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is
10% and deferred tax liability is only provided on 50% of post-2007 earnings that are expected to be
distributable in the foreseeable future.

The remaining 50% of post-2007 earnings that are not expected to be distributable in the foreseeable
future would be subject to additional taxation if they are distributed. The estimated withholding tax
effects on the distribution of these unremitted retained earnings of these PRC subsidiaries were
approximately of US$92,649,000 (2010: US$68,885,000). In the opinion of the directors, these retained
earnings, at the present time, are required for financing the continuing operations of the PRC
subsidiaries and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, no provisions for
additional deferred taxation have been made.
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of US$86,274,000 (2010:
US$48,861,000), which can be carried forward for five years from the year in which the losses arose
for offsetting against future taxable income. Losses amounting to US$10,301,000 (2070:
US$9,986,000), US$6,826,000 (2010: US$6,869,000), US$9,546,000 (2010: US$Y,109,000),
US$11,508,000 (2010: US$11,688,000) and US$48,093,000 (2010: US$Nil) will expire in 2012,
2013,2014, 2015 and 2016 respectively.

The Company does not have unrecognised deferred tax liabilities at the end of reporting period.

31. TRADE PAYABLES

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US3°000
Trade payables
Due to third parties 892,788 989,113 2,154 2,126
Due to related parties 81,325 94,800 - -

974,113 1,083,913 2,154 2,126

The trade payables due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and with credit period of 90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is

as follows:
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
US$’000 US$°000 US$’000 Us$’000
0 — 90 days 915,284 1,066,760 2,152 2,118
Over 90 days 58,829 17,153 2 8

974,113 1,083,913 2,154 2,126

The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
USS$ 000 US$°000 USS$ ’000 US$'000
RMB 971,959 1,081,787

NTD 2,154 2,126 2,154 2,126
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32, OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

US$’000 US$'000 US$°000 US3$'000

Deposits received in advance 177,288 116,965 - 9,833
Accruals for transportation, promoting

and advertising expenses 221,937 173,268 - -

Salaries and welfare payables 84,887 82,533 - -

Payables for purchase of equipments 60,360 42,036 - -

Other accruals 76,225 89,112 12,143 687

Due to a related party 707 15,257 707 15,257

Others 39,591 53,078 137 45

660,995 572,249 12,987 25,822

The other payable due to a related party is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2011 2010
Us$°000 US$°000
Profit before taxation 662,976 746,774
Interest expenses 9,372 6,511
Interest income (38,564) (21,479)
Dividend income (1,573) -
Depreciation 317,544 275,054
Unfunded employee benefit obligations paid (932) -
Amortisation on prepaid lease payments 3,697 2,544
Amortisation on intangible assets - 1,989
(Gain) Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (74) 8,083
Gain on disposal of a non wholly-owned
subsidiary and an associate previously classified as
held for sale (39,175 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 4,169 35,520
Reversal of impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (3,500) -
Impairment loss on intangible assets - 4,966
Fair value change in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 135 766
Share of results of associates - (9,978)
Gain on discontinuation of equity accounting for an associate - (68,653)
Effect on exchange rate changes 7,677 2,438
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payment 11,346 5,020
Increase in trade payables due to a former associate - 56,933
Decrease (Increase) in inventories 12,503 (93,123)
Increase in trade receivables (21,017) (9,828)
Increase in prepayments and other receivables (68,994) (68,513)
(Decrease) Increase in trade payables (163,205) 334,905
Increase in other payables 69,583 143,356
(Decrease) Increase in advance payments from customers (24,723) 43,012
Decrease in other non-current payables (791) (792)
Increase in present value of unfunded employee benefit obligations 2,899 720
Cash generated from operations 739,353 1,396,225
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34, SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party transactions in the ordinary course of the

Group’s business.

Note
(a) Related party transactions

Sales of goods to:
Companies controlled by a substantial shareholder of the Company (i)

Purchases of goods from:
A former associate
A former non-wholly owned subsidiary
A company jointly controlled by the Company’s directors (i)
A group of companies jointly controlled by the Company’s directors

and their dependent (i)
Holding companies of a minority shareholder of a subsidiary of the

Company (i)

Proceed from the disposal of a non-wholly owned subsidiary and
an associate previously classified as assets held for sale from:
A company jointly controlled by the Company’s directors (i)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and

prepaid lease payments to:
A group of companies jointly controlled by the Company’s directors

and their dependent (i)
A company controlled by a substantial shareholder of the Company (i)

2011
US$’000

6,774

219,938
15,609
15,437

205,459

3,878

88,500

9,973
6,479

2010
US$°000

4,833

405,395

3,495

9,833

Note (i) Those related party transactions also constitute connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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34,

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2011 2010
US$’000 US3°000
(b) Related party balances
Trade payables due to related parties:
A company jointly controlled by the Company’s directors 3,512 -
A group of companies jointly controlled by the Company’s directors
and their dependent 73,099 90,378
A company controlled by a substantial shareholder of the Company 4,714 4,422
81,325 94,800
Other payables due to related parties:
A group of companies jointly controlled by the Company’s directors
and their dependent 707 15,257

(©) Key management personnel remuneration:

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s

directors and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, is as follows:

2011 2010

Us$’000 US$°000

Directors’ fees 630 622
Salaries and other emoluments 3,600 2,998
Share-based payments 7,009 3,104
Discretionary bonuses 1,213 1,071
Retirement scheme contribution ‘ 13 11
12,465 7,806
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35,

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity components, using a gearing ratio which
is calculated on the basis of net debt (interest bearing borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents)
as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the Company as disclosed in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
US3°000 US$°000 US$°000 US3°000
Interest bearing borrowings 1,250,077 634,135 410,000 220,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (600,052) (893,340) (6,396) (60,196)
Net debt (cash) 650,025 (259,205) 403,604 159,804
Total equity 2,099,745 1,821,258 305,364 378,562
Gearing ratio 30.96% -14.23% 132.17% 42.21%

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according to changes in
economic conditions for achieving its objectives through payment of dividends, share repurchase
and issue of new debt. Changing of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2011, the Group‘s strategy, which was unchanged from 2010, was aimed at maintaining the
net debt approximately to nil balance. The increase in the gearing ratio during 2011 was resulted
primarily from increase in bank borrowings for financing the Group’s capital expenditures during
the year.

Some of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to financial covenants requirements imposed by
certain banks.
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial instruments expose it to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and price risk. The Board of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its
risks management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the PRC and most of their transactions are
denominated in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through capital
expenditures, purchases, bank balances, borrowings, available-for-sales financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss that are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk and has not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the subsidiaries of the
Group mainly earn their profits in RMB and the value of RMB has been appreciating against US$ in
recent past years.

Details of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, bank balances, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables denominated in US$, RMB, NTD,
EUR and JPY as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 are set out in notes 18, 19, 24, 28 and 31 respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB / US$, RMB / NTD, RMB / EUR and
RMB / JPY had strengthened / weakened by 5%, 9%, 8% and 1% respectively with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits would have been US$50,316,000
(2010: US$23,372,000) higher / lower, other comprehensive income would have been US$162,894,000
(2010: US$129,623,000) higher / lower and exchange translation reserve would have been
US$123,097,000 (2010: US$95,143,000) higher / lower.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
interest-bearing borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group’s policy is to manage its interest
cost using a mix of fixed and floating rate debts. The Group has not hedged its cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk. The Group’s strategy is to maintain an appropriate proportion between
borrowings at fixed interest rates and floating interest rates, in consideration of economic atmosphere
and the strategies of the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 10 (2010: 1() basis point higher / lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits would
decrease / increase by US$1,200,000 (2010: US3574,000).
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalent,
trade and other receivables. Substantially all of the Group’s and the Company’s pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in the creditworthy global financial
institutions and state-controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which management consider they
are without significant credit risk.

The majority of the Group’s sales are conducted on a cash basis. The Group has implemented
policies to ensure that sales of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade on credit
terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject to periodic reviews. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. Receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other receivables arises from default of the counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these receivables. The credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into account their financial position, credit history and other
factors. Individual credit limits are set based on the assessment of the credit quality. Given the
repayment history, the directors are of the opinion that the risk of default by these counterparties is
not significant. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as 25%
(2010: 20%) of the total amounts of the prepayments and other receivables was due from the five largest
counterparties.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had a concentration of credit risk as 97% (2010: 95%)
of the total amounts due from subsidiaries was due from the five largest subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objectives when managing liquidity risk are to maintain sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed credit facilities to the Group. Also, the Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular relating to capital expenditure and
repayments of debts. At the end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that the
Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future. Details of the preparation of financial
statements on a going concern basis are set out in note 2.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on
contractual undiscounted payments are summarised below:

Group

Within 1 More than 1 More than 2

year or on year but less years but less
demand than 2 years than 5 years Total
US$°000 US$°000 US$'000 US$°000

At 31 December 2011

Trade payables 974,113 - - 974,113
Other payables 660,995 - - 660,995
Interest-bearing borrowings 709,611 112,901 450,160 1,272,672
2,344,719 112,901 450,160 2,907,780
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Group
Within 1 More than 1 More than 2
year or on year but less years but less
demand than 2 years than 5 years Total
US$°000 US3°000 US3°000 US3°000
At 31 December 2010
Trade payables 1,083,913 - - 1,083,913
Other payables 571,458 - - 571,458
Interest-bearing borrowings 461,894 94,108 86,419 642,421
Other non-current payables 791 791 - 1,582
2,118,056 94,899 86,419 2,299,374
Company
Within 1 More than 1 More than 2
year or on year but less years but less
demand than 2 years than S years Total
US$°000 US$°000 US3°000 US$°000
At 31 December 2011
Due to subsidiaries 50,513 - - 50,513
Trade payables 2,154 - - 2,154
Other payables 12,280 - - 12,280
Amount due to related parties 707 - - 707
Interest-bearing borrowings 205,935 35,389 175,663 416,987
271,589 35,389 175,663 482,641
At 31 December 2010
Due to subsidiaries 99,078 - - 99,078
Trade payables 2,126 - - 2,126
Other payables 25,822 - - 25,822
Interest-bearing borrowings 159,104 40,623 25,263 224,990
286,130 40,623 25,263 ﬂlﬁ_
Company
Within 1 More than 1 More than 2
year or on year but less years but less
demand than 2 years than 5 years Total
US3°000 US3°000 US$’000 US$°000
Financial guarantees issued:
Maximum amounted guaranteed
At 31 December 2011 105,000 - - 105,000
At 31 December 2010 68,758 - - 68,758
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has issued financial guarantees in respect of credit
facilities to two wholly-owned subsidiaries of US$150,000,000 (2010: US3161,057,000). The
directors do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the Company under the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period under the
guarantees issued is the facility drawn down by the subsidiaries of US$105,000,000 (2010:
US$68,758,000).

Due to the related party nature of the instruments, the directors considered it not meaningful and
practicable to estimate the fair values of the financial guarantees and therefore they have not been
recognised in the Company's statement of financial position.

Fair value

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
The following table presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instrument

- Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable market data

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Group
2011 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000 US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US3'000
Available-for-sale
- Equity securities, listed - -
outside Hong Kong 92,518 - - 92,518 109,251 - - 109,251
-Private investment funds - - 8,496 8,496 - - - -
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Equity securities, listed
outside Hong Kong 551 - - 551 762 - - 762
- US$ currency fund - 9 - 9 - 9 - 9

93,069 9 8,496 101,574 110,013 9 - 110,022
T — e ————
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value (continued)

Company
2011 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$°000 US$ 000 US$'000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000  US$'000  US$'000
Available-for-sale
- Equity securities, listed
outside Hong Kong 55,095 - - 55,095 73,937 - - 73,937
-Private investment funds - - 8,496 8,496 - - - -
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Equity securities, listed
outside Hong Kong 551 - - 551 762 - - 762
- US$ currency fund - 9 - 9 - 9 - 9
55,646 9 8.496 64,151 74,699 9 - 74,708

During the year ended 2011 and 2010, there were no transfers between instruments in Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

The movement in assets measured at fair value level based on level 3 for the year ended 31 December
2011 are shown as follows:

Private
investment
funds
US$°000
Total purchases during the reporting period and at the end
of the reporting period 8,496

Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for
assets held at the end of the reporting period -

The fair values of the unlisted private investment funds are valued based on the fair values of the
companies invested by the private funds which are estimated using price / earnings (P/E) multiple
model. It includes assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. In
determining the fair value, average annual growth rates of unquoted companies invested by the funds
ranging from 9% to 29%, average P/E ratios of comparable companies and median P/E ratios of the
corresponding industries ranging from 12.9 to 24.7 times are used.

(b)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value
In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial

instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as
at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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37.

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price risks arising from investments classified as
available-for-sale financial assets at fair value and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
For the Group’s and the Company’s equity securities investments that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. The Group’s and the Company’s unlisted
investments are held for long-term strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at least
annually based on the information available to the Group, together with an assessment of their
relevance to the Group’s long-term strategic plans.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure of the listed equity securities to

equity price risk. At the end of the reporting period, it is estimated that an increase / decrease of 10%

(2010. 10%) in the relevant stock market index as applicable, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased / decreased the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits by US$55,000
(2010: US$76,000) due to change in the fair value of investments held-for-trading, and would have
increased / decreased the Group’s investment valuation reserves by US$9,251,000 (2010:
US$10,925,000) as a result of changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets. The Group
will monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need rise.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the reasonably possible changes in the stock
market index had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s listed
investments would change in accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant stock market
index that none of the Group’s available-for-sale investments at fair value would be considered impaired
as a result of a reasonably possible decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all other
variables remain constant. The stated changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market index over the period until the next annual end of the
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.

COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure commitments

Group
2011 2010
US$°000 US$°000
Contracted but not provided for 290,319 260,662
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(b)

38.

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Commitments under operating leases

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which are payable as follows:

Group
2011 2010
US$’000 US$°000
Within one year 26,001 14,939
In the second to fifth years inclusive 41,112 21,384
After five years 26,183 14,996

93,296 51,319

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 4 November 2011, the Company and PepsiCo Inc. (“PepsiCo”) entered into the Contribution
Agreement, the Commercial Agreements and the agreements for their strategic alliance in the
beverage business in the PRC (the “Strategic Alliance Arrangements™) that PepsiCo’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, Far East Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited (“FEB”), has agreed to contribute its entire
interest in PepsiCo’s non-alcoholic beverage bottling businesses in the PRC to Tingyi-Asahi
Beverages Holding Co., Ltd. (“TAB”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in exchange
for a 9.5% direct interest in Master Kong Beverage (BVI) Co. Ltd. (“MKB”), which is a holding
company of the Group’s beverage business in the PRC. As a consequence, FEB will hold 5%
indirect equity interest in TAB and FEB will be granted an option to increase its indirect interest in
TAB to 20% on a fully diluted basis, details of this business combination are set out in the Circular
of the Company dated 20 January 2012. At the end of the reporting period, the Strategic Alliance
Arrangements have not been completed and are subject to the fulfillment of conditions.

On 17 February 2012, the Strategic Alliance Arrangements have been approved by the shareholders
of the Company. As of 21 March 2012, the date of these financial statements, the closing of the
Strategic Alliance Arrangements is still pending for the outcome of the regulatory approval in the
PRC.

Pursuant to the Strategic Alliance Arrangements, upon the closing of Strategic Alliance
Arrangements, MKB and TAB, will issue their respective new shares which will constitute a deemed
disposal of 9.5% equity interest in MKB as well as a deemed disposal of 2.5% equity interest in
TAB; and the adjusted aggregate book value of PepsiCo’s non-alcoholic beverage bottling business
in the PRC to be acquired by TAB will be amounted to US$600 million. As the Strategic Alliance
Arrangements has not been completed and the initial accounting for the transaction is incomplete, it
is not practicable to reliably estimate its financial effect.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

Master Kong Instant
Foods (BVI) Co.,
Ltd.

Tianjin Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as Tianjin
Tingyi International
Food Co., Ltd.)

Guangzhou Tingyi
Food Co., Ltd.

* Hangzhou Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

* Master Kong
(Hangzhou)
Convenient Food
Co., Ltd.

Chonggqing Tingyi
Food Co., Ltd.

Shenyang Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

‘Wuhan Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

Xian Tingyi Food Co.,
Ltd.

Qingdao Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

Harbin Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

Place of
incorporation /
operation

British Virgin
Islands
(GGBVI”)

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

Registered
capital / issued
share capital

50,000 ordinary
shares at US$1
each / US$1

US$72,000,000

US$31,000,000

US$131,500,000 /

US$92,700,000

US$20,000,000

US$22,000,000

US$17,000,000

US$17,800,000

US$17,000,000

US$5,000,000

US$11,200,000

Proportion of
ownership interest

Directly

100%

Indirectly

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

Investment holding

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name

Fujian Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

* Xinjiang Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

* NanJing Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

Master Kong (Taiwan)
Foods Co., Ltd. #

* Chengdu Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

* Hebei Yi Wan Xiang
Foods Co., Ltd. #

* Master Kong
(Kunming)
Convenient Food
Co., Ltd.

* Master Kong
(Shenyang)
Convenient Food
Co., Ltd.

Master Kong Instant
Noodle Investment
(China) Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as
Master Kong Instant
Foods Investment
(China) Co., Ltd.)

* Huaian Fumanduo
Food Co., Ltd.

* Meishan Fumanduo
Food Co., Ltd.

Place of
incorporation /
operation

PRC

PRC

PRC

Taiwan

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

Registered
capital / issued
share capital
US$4,500,000
US$3,000,000

US$14,000,000

50,000,000

ordinary shares of

NT$10 each /
NT$500,000,000

US$17,000,000

RMB187,500,000

US$3,000,000

US$6,000,000

US$227,500,000 /
US$102,000,000

US$5,000,000

US$5,000,000

Proportion of
ownership interest

Directly

100%

Indirectly

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Investment holding

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles
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Place of Registered
incorporation/  capital / issued
Name operation share capital
* Changsha Fumanduo PRC US$5,000,000
Food Co., Ltd. #
* Zhengzhou Fumanduo PRC US$5,000,000
Food Co., Ltd. #
* Lanzhou Fumanduo PRC US$5,000,000
Food Co., Ltd.
* Master Kong PRC US$5,000,000
(Chongging)
Convenient Food
Co., Ltd.
* Xianyang Fumanduo PRC US$5,000,000
Food Co., Ltd.
* Xinjiang Fumanduo PRC US$3,000,000
Food Co., Ltd.
* Hebei Fumanduo Food PRC US$5,000,000
Co., Ltd.
* Harbin Fumanduo PRC US$3,000,000
Food Co., Ltd. #
* Jinan Fumanduo Food PRC US$5,000,000
Co., Ltd.
* Dongguan Fumanduo PRC US$5,000,000
Food Co., Ltd.
Master Kong Bakery BVI 50,000 ordinary
(BVI) Co., Ltd. shares at US$1
each / US$1
Master Kong Instant PRC US$85,400,000/
Foods Investment US$4,500,000

(China) Co., Ltd.

Proportion of
ownership interest

Directly

100%

Indirectly

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles
Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Investment holding

Investment holding
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Place of Registered
incorporation/ capital / issued

Name operation share capital

Tianjin Kameda Food PRC US$6,000,000
Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Tingyuan Food PRC  US$37,000,000
Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Tingyuan PRC  US$22,000,000
Food Co., Ltd.

Hangzhou Ting Yuan PRC US$18,400,000
Food Co., Ltd.

Master Kong BVI 50,000 ordinary
Beverages (BVI) Co., shares of US$1
Ltd. each /

US$50,000

Tingyi-Asahi Cayman Islands 5,000,000
Beverages Holding ordinary shares
Co., Ltd. of US$0.01 each

/US$10,001
* Tianjin Tingjin Food PRC  US$60,840,000
Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Tingjin PRC  US$20,000,000
Food Co., Ltd.

* Master Kong PRC US$14,500,000
(Guangzhou)
Beverage Co., Ltd.

* Hangzhou Tingjin Food PRC  US$38,100,000
Co., Ltd.

* Master Kong PRC  US$28,350,000
(Hangzhou) Beverage
Co., Ltd.

Xi’an Tingjin Food PRC  US$5,000,000
Co., Ltd.

* Wuhan Tingjin Food PRC US$51,000,000/
Co., Ltd. US$35,000,000

Proportion of
ownership interest

Directly

100%

100%

Indirectly

50%

100%

100%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

Principal activity

Manufacture and
sale of rice
crackers

Manufacture and
sale of bakery
products

Manufacture and
sale of bakery
products

Manufacture and
sale of bakery
products

Investment holding

Investment holding

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages
Manufacture and

sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages
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Name
Chongging Tingjin
Food Co., Ltd.

* Qingdao Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd,

Fujian Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd,

*

Harbin Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd. #

*

Xinjiang Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd.

* Kunming Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd.

*

Zhengzhou Tingjin
Food Co., Ltd.

* Lanzhou Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd.

* Master Kong
(Shenyang) Beverage
Co. Ltd.

*

Master Kong (Xi’an)
Beverage Co., Ltd.

* Master Kong (Tianjin)
Beverage Co., Ltd.

* Nanjing Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd.

* Master Kong (Jilin)
The Changbai
Mountain Beverage
Co., Ltd.

* Yangzhou Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd.

Place of
incorporation /
operation

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

Registered
capital / issued
share capital

US$24,000,000
US$15,000,000
US$13,700,000
US$33,000,000 /
US$22,600,000
US$10,000,000
US$12,000,000
US$24,000,000

US$16,000,000

US$41,000,000 /
US$37,000,000

US$48,500,000
US$30,500,000
US$5,000,000

US$5,000,000

US$36,500,000 /
US$30,400,000

Proportion of

ownership interest

Directly  Indirectly

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

Principal activity
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages
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Name

Place of
incorporation
/ operation

Registered
capital / issued
share capital

Master Kong PRC  US$12,000,000 /
(Hangzhou) US$1,800,029
Qiandaohu
Beverages Co., Ltd.

#

Guangzhou Tingjin PRC US$59,300,000
Bererage Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Tingjin PRC  US$12,000,000
Beverage Co., Ltd.

Master Kong (Dalian) PRC US$10,500,000
Beverage Co., Ltd.

Chengdu Tingjin Food PRC  US$20,500,000
Co., Ltd.

Master Kong PRC US$12,000,000
(Wulumugji)

Beverage Co., Ltd. #

Nanchang Tingjin PRC  US$14,000,000 /
Food Co., Ltd. US$13,200,000

Yuncheng Tingjin PRC US$2,110,000
Beverage Co., Ltd.

Zhumadian Tingjin PRC US$2,110,000/
Beverage Co., Ltd. US$1,695,000

Zhanjiang Tingjin PRC US$2,600,000
Beverage Co., Ltd.

Changchun Tingjin PRC US$4,000,000 /
Beverage Co., Ltd. US$3,200,000

Zhangzhou Tingjin PRC  US$12,000,000 /
Food Co., Ltd. US$2,400,000

Ganzhou Tingjin PRC US$2,100,000 /
Beverage Co., Ltd. US$420,000

Huaihua Tingjin PRC US$2,100,000 /

Beverage Co., Ltd.

US$420,000

Proportion of
ownership interest
Directly  Indirectly

50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

Principal activity

Not yet commenced
business

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Not yet commenced
business

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages
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Place of Registered
incorporation/  capital / issued

Proportion of

Name operation share capital ownership interest
Directly  Indirectly

* Jinzhou Tingjin Beverage PRC  US$5,000,000/ - 50.01%
Co., Ltd. US$1,000,000
* Honghe Tingjin Beverage PRC  US$2,100,000 / - 50.01%
Co., Ltd. US$420,000
Master Kong Beverage PRC  US$87,702,000 - 50.01%
Investment (China) Co.,
Ltd.
* Yancheng Tingjin PRC US$2,100,000/ - 50.01%
Beverage Co., Ltd. US$420,000
* Liupanshui Tingjin PRC  US$2,100,000/ - 50.01%
Beverage Co., Ltd. US$420,000
* Master Kong (Kunming) PRC US$12,000,000 / - 50.01%
Beverage Co., Ltd. US$2,400,000
* Wujiang Tingjin Food PRC US$40,000,000 / - 50.01%
Co., Ltd. US$8,000,000
* Baotou Tingjin Food Co., PRC US$12,000,000/ - 50.01%
Ltd. US$9,600,000
* Nanning Tingjin Food PRC US$12,000,000/ - 50.01%
Co., Ltd. US$9,000,000
* Yichang Tingjin Beverage PRC US$2,100,000/ - 50.01%
Co., Ltd. US$420,000
* Jieyang Tingjin Beverage PRC  US$2,100,000/ - 50.01%
Co., Ltd. US$420,000
* Nanchong Tingjin PRC US$2,100,000/ - 50.01%
Beverage Co., Ltd. US$0
* Xiamen Tingjin Beverage PRC US$13,500,000 / - 50.01%
Co., Ltd. US$0
Yingkou Tingjin PRC US$2,100,000/ - 50.01%
Beverage Co., Ltd. # US$o
Yantai Tingjin Beverage PRC  US$5,000,000/ - 50.01%
Co., Ltd. Us$o
Jiuquan Tingjin Beverage PRC US$2,100,000/ - 50.01%
Co., Ltd. # Us$o

Principal activity
Not yet commenced
business

Not yet commenced
business

Investment
holding
Manufacture and

sale of beverages

Not yet commenced
business

Not yet commenced
business

Not yet commenced
business

Not yet commenced
business

Not yet commenced
business

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Not yet commenced
business

Not yet commenced
business

Not yet commenced
business

Not yet commenced
business

Not yet commenced
business
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Place of Registered
incorporation/ capital / issued
Name operation share capital
Xinghua Dinfang PRC  US$8,600,000
Dehydrate Foods Co., .
Ltd.
Tian Jin Ting Jia PRC US$2,100,000
Machinery Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Tingyu PRC US$200,000
Consulting Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Tingquan PRC US$210,000
Properties Management
Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Dingya Property PRC US$2,100,000
Development Co., Ltd.
* Guangzhou Dingya Real PRC RMB16,400,000
Estate Development
Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Tingxin PRC US$1,700,000
International
Engineering Consultant
Co., Ltd.
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI 50,000 ordinary
shares of US$1
each / US$1,000
Tingtong (Cayman Cayman Islands 15,000,000

Islands) Holding Corp. ordinary shares
of US$1 each /

US$2,118,334

Shanghai Tingtong PRC US$5,000,000

Logistics Co., Ltd.

Directly

Proportion of
ownership interest
Indirectly

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

38% 62%

100% -

100% -

- 50.01%

- 50.01%

Principal activity

Manufacture and
sale of dehydrated
vegetables

Installation and
maintenance of
plant and
machinery

Provision of
management
services

Provision of
property
management and
related
consultancy
services

Property
development

Property
development

Provision of
engineering related
consultancy and
research service

Investment holding

Investment holding

Logistics services
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of Registered
incorporation / capital / issued Proportion of
Name operation share capital ownership interest  Principal activity
Directly  Indirectly
Guangzhou Ting Tong PRC US$300,000 - 50.01% Logistics services
Logistics Co., Ltd.
Beijing Ting Tong PRC US$500,000 - 50.01% Logistics services
Logistics Co., Ltd.
Chongging Ting Tong PRC US$300,000 - 50.01% Logistics services
Logistics Co., Ltd.
Shenyang Ting Tong PRC US$300,000 - 50.01% Logistics services
Logistics Co., Ltd.
Tingyi (BVI) Int’l Co., BVI 50,000 ordinary 100% - Purchasing and sales
Ltd. shares of US$1 agent for the
each / US$50,000 Group
Master Kong (HK) HK HK$10,000/ 100% - Agent and trading of
Trading Company HKS$2 products for the
Limited Group
Wei Chuan (Anji) Dairy PRC US$2,100,000 100% - Manufacture and
Farm Co., Ltd. # sale of milk
products
Tianjin Haojia Investment PRC RMBI10,000,000 - 100% Investment
Co., Ltd. # holding
Kon Yuan Corporation # Taiwan  NT$110,000,000 100% - Investment holding
Kon Chuan Corporation # Taiwan NT$96,000,000 100% - Investment holding
Kon Jun Corporation # Taiwan  NT$110,000,000 100% - Investment holding

* These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture companies.
#  English translation for identification purposes only.

The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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